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The Directors of the Company are committed to having an appropriate corporate governance framework and are aware 
of the recommendations made by the ASX Corporate Governance Council.  However, the areas of non compliance with 
ASX Guidelines include: 
 
• For the period covered in this Annual Report, separate nomination and remuneration committees have not been 

established.  The Directors believe the role of these committees can be fulfilled by the full Board having regard to 
the size and nature of the Company’s operations; and 
 

• The role of Chairman and Chief Executive Officer is fulfilled by Mr. Stewart Elliott.  The Directors believe this is 
appropriate having regard to the alignment of his interests with shareholders through his shareholding in the 
Company, the size of the Company and the nature of the Company’s operations. 
 

• Shareholders should also be aware that the ASX Corporate Governance Council rules and principles may materially 
differ from the New Zealand Stock Exchange (“NZSX”) corporate governance rules and the principles of the New 
Zealand Corporate Governance Best Practice Code. Shareholders may find more information about the corporate 
governance and principles of the ASX from asx.com.au. 

 
Board of Directors 
 
Role of the Board 
 
The Board of Directors is responsible for the overall Corporate Governance of the consolidated entity including its 
strategic direction, establishing goals for management and monitoring the achievement of these goals, approving and 
monitoring capital expenditure, ensuring the integrity of internal control and management information systems.  It is 
also responsible for approving and monitoring financial and other reporting. 
 
Board Processes 
 
The Board establishes committees depending upon the nature, size and complexity of the Company’s affairs at the time.  
Throughout the financial year all matters, which may have been capable of delegation to a committee, were dealt with 
by the Board. 
 
The Board meets on a regular basis, and also where appropriate, for strategy meetings and any extraordinary meetings 
at other times as may be necessary to address any specific significant matters that may arise. 
 
The agenda for meetings is prepared in conjunction with the Chairperson, Executive Director and Company Secretary. 
Standing items include the Executive Director’s report, financial reports, strategic matters, governance and compliance. 
Submissions are circulated in advance. Executives are regularly involved in Board discussions and Directors have other 
opportunities, including visits to operations, for contact with the employees. 
 
The Board conducts an annual review of its processes to ensure that it is able to carry out its functions in the most 
effective manner. 
 
Composition of the Board 
 
The names of the Directors of the Company, together with details of their relevant experience are set out in the 
Directors’ Report. 
 
The procedures for election and retirement of Directors are governed by the Company’s Constitution and the Listing 
Rules of Australian Stock Exchange Limited. 
 
The composition of the Board is determined using the following principles: 
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• The Board shall comprise Directors with a range of expertise encompassing the current and proposed activities of 

the Company. 
 

• Where a vacancy is considered to exist, the Board selects an appropriate candidate through consultation with 
external parties, consideration of the needs of the shareholder base and consideration of the needs of the Company.  
Such appointments are referred to shareholders at the next available opportunity for re-election at the general 
meeting. 

 
Conflict of Interest 
 
In accordance with the Corporations Act 2001 and the Company’s constitution, Directors must keep the Board advised, 
on an ongoing basis, of any interest that could potentially conflict with those of the Company. Where the Board believes 
that a significant conflict exists, the Director concerned does not receive the relevant board papers and is not present at 
the meeting whilst the item is considered. The Board has developed procedures to ensure that Directors disclose 
potential conflicts of interest.  
 
Details of Directors related entity transactions with the Company and consolidated entity are set out in Note 29. 
 
Independent Professional Advice and Access to Company Information 
 
Each Director has the right to seek independent professional advice on matters relating to his position as a Director of 
the Company at the Company’s expense, subject to prior approval of the Chairperson, which shall not be unreasonably 
withheld. 
 
Remuneration Policies 
 
For the period covered in this Annual Report, the Company’s major shareholder, Energy World International Limited 
(“EWI”), has provided assistance to the Company in the form of direct executive and management assistance when and 
as required.   
 
The services provided by EWI executives to the Company were rendered without remuneration in respect of time spent 
on EWC related matters.  Although EWC’s economic position permits the Company to compensate directors for such 
services, for the period covered in this Annual Report, no formal obligations have been entered into or contracted 
between EWC and its Executive or Non-Executive Directors.  At the annual general meeting of shareholders held on 24 
October 2008, the shareholders agreed the maximum annual aggregate remuneration that the Directors are entitled to be 
paid for their ordinary services as Directors out of the funds of the Company be fixed at A$200,000 for Non-Executive 
Directors and A$800,000 for Executive Directors.   
 
For the period covered in this Annual Report, no formal obligations have been entered into or contracted between EWC 
and its Executive or Non-Executive Directors.  During the financial year 1 July 2010 to 30 June 2011, it is intended that 
compensation arrangements will be developed for both Executive Directors and Non-Executive Directors based upon 
shareholders aggregate remuneration of Directors approved at the Annual General Meeting of shareholders on 24 
October 2008. 
   
Specific details of Directors Remuneration are provided in the Remuneration Report and Note 29 of the financial 
statements.   
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Director Dealings in Company Shares 
 
Company policy prohibits Directors and senior management from buying or selling in Company shares or exercising 
options whilst in possession of price sensitive information. 
 
Directors must obtain the approval of the Chairperson of the Board and notify the Company Secretary before they sell 
or buy shares in the Company. This is reported to the Board and is subject to Board veto. In accordance with the 
provisions of the Corporations Act 2001 and the Listing Rules of the Australian Stock Exchange, Directors advise the 
Exchange of any transactions conducted by them in shares in the Company. 
 
Audit Committee 
 
The Board reviews the independence of the Auditors on an annual basis.  The Company formed an audit committee 
comprising all Non-Executive Directors since the financial year commenced 1 July 2008.  The principal duties of the 
Audit Committee include, but are not limited to, reviewing the Company’s current financial standing, considering the 
nature and scope of audit reports, and ensuring internal control systems cooperate in accordance with applicable 
standards and conventions. 
 
During the period covered in this Annual Report, the responsibility of the Audit Committee was performed as follows: 

 
 

Number of Meetings 
held while in Office 

Number of Meetings 
attended while in Office 

Mr. Leslie James Charles* 4 1 
Mr. Djan Faridz* 4 0 
Dr. Brian Derek Littlechild  4 4 
Mr. Michael Phillip O’Neill 4 4 
* Were aware of the audit committee meeting but were unavailable to attend. 
 
Ethical Standards 
 
The Company recognises the need for Directors and employees to observe the highest standards of behavior and 
business ethics in conducting its business, and to maintain a reputation of integrity. 
 
Internal Control Framework 
 
The Board acknowledges that it is responsible for the overall internal control framework, but recognises that no cost 
effective internal control system will preclude errors and irregularities. The system is based upon written procedures, 
policies and guidelines, division of responsibility and the careful selection and training of qualified personnel. 
 
Continuous disclosure – the consolidated entity has a policy that all shareholders and investors have equal access to the 
Company’s information and has procedures to ensure that all price sensitive information is disclosed to the ASX in 
accordance with the continuous disclosure requirements of the Corporations Act 2001 and ASX Listing Rules.  
 
• A comprehensive process is in place to identify matters that may have a material effect on the price of the 

Company’s securities;  
• The Managing Director, the Executive Directors and the Company Secretary are responsible for interpreting the 

Company’s policy and where necessary informing the Board;  
• The Company Secretary or an Executive Director is responsible for all communications with the ASX. 
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Business Risks 
 
Where necessary, the Board draws on the expertise of appropriate internal staff and external consultants to assist in 
dealing with or mitigating significant business risk. 
 
The Company’s main areas of risk include: 
 
• Contractual risks associated with power, gas and LNG sales; 
• Water supply and mechanical and electrical risks associated with power generation, gas and LNG production;  
• Exploration and development risks;  
• Obtaining sufficient capital to fund current and future projects; and 
• Obtaining appropriate licences and governmental approvals to implement current and future projects. 
 
The Role of Shareholders 
 
The Board of Directors aims to ensure that the shareholders are informed of all major developments affecting the 
consolidated entity’s state of affairs.  Information is communicated to shareholders as follows: 
 
• The half-year and annual financial reports contain summarised financial information and a review of the operations 

of the consolidated entity during the period. The financial reports are prepared in accordance with the requirements 
of applicable accounting standards and the Corporations Act 2001 and are lodged with the Australian Securities and 
Investment Commission and the Australian Securities Exchange. The financial report is sent to any shareholder 
who requests it. 
 

• Proposed major changes in the consolidated entity which may impact on share ownership rights are submitted to a 
vote of shareholders. 
 

• Notices of all meetings of shareholders. 
 
The Board encourages full participation of shareholders at the annual general meeting to ensure a high level of 
accountability and identification with the consolidated entity’s strategy and goals. Important issues are presented to the 
shareholders as single resolutions.  
 
The shareholders are requested to vote on the appointment and aggregate remuneration of Directors, the granting of 
options and shares to Directors and changes to the constitution. Copies of the constitution are available to any 
shareholder who requests it.  
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The Directors present their report together with the financial report of Energy World Corporation Limited (“the 
Company”) and of the consolidated entity, being the Company and its controlled entities, for the year ended 30 June 
2010 and the auditor’s report thereon. 
 

Directors 
 

The Directors of the Company at any time during or since the end of the financial year are: 
 
Name 
 

Age Experience, Special Responsibilities and Other Directorships 

Executive Directors 
 
Mr. Stewart William George Elliott, 
Chairman, Managing Director,  
Chief Executive Officer (CEO) 

64 Mr. Elliott joined our Board in November 1999 as a Non-executive 
Director and was appointed Managing Director and CEO on 29 
September 2000 and Chairman on 10 September 2003. He is the 
founder and managing director of Energy World International Ltd 
(“EWI”), one of our Controlling Shareholders and our largest 
Shareholder. EWI is wholly owned by Mr. Elliott and has diverse 
interests including listed investments, resources, property and hotel 
interests. It is also the parent company of Slipform (H.K.). Mr. Elliott 
was the Managing Director and CEO of CEPA. CEPA was listed on 
the SEHK in 1993 and delisted on 30 December 1996 following its 
acquisition and privatisation by The Southern Company for 
US$3,152.8 million. Mr. Elliott was also an Executive Director of 
Hong Kong listed, Hopewell Holdings Limited from 1980 until 1998, 
leading many of its infrastructure projects and major developments 
(including leading the construction of the “Hopewell Centre” in Hong 
Kong). 
 

Appointed Managing Director and CEO on 29 September 2000. 
 

Appointed Chairman on 10 September 2003. 
 

Mr. Ian William Jordan, 
Executive Director and Company 
Secretary (Australia) 
 

71 Mr. Jordan was appointed an Executive Director on 29 September 
2000 and Company Secretary in Australia on 12 April 2001. He holds 
a degree in Electrical Engineering from the University of 
Queensland. He is a fellow of the Institute of Engineers, Australia, 
and is a chartered professional engineer. He is a director of EWI. 
Prior to joining Energy World Corporation Ltd (“EWC”), Mr. Jordan 
was a senior executive with CEPA and before this Mr. Jordan was a 
partner in an international engineering consultancy. He has more than 
40 years experience internationally in the electric power industry, 
including project development, project finance, construction and 
operation. 
 

Appointed Executive Director on 29 September 2000. 
 

Appointed Company Secretary (Australia) on 12 April 2001. 
 

Mr. Brian Jeffrey Allen, 
Executive Director and 
Finance Director 
 

58 
 

Mr. Allen was appointed an Executive Director on 12 April 2001. He 
is also a director of EWI. Prior to joining EWI´s board of directors in 
September 2000, Mr. Allen was a director and head of project finance 
for The Hongkong and Shanghai Banking Corporation Limited based 
in Hong Kong. Mr. Allen was directly involved in a number of 
transactions including certain financing arranged by HSBC Group 
members for CEPA. Mr. Allen has been involved in arranging finance 
for major projects in Asia since 1986. 
 

Appointed Executive Director on 12 April 2001. 
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Name 
 

Age Experience, Special Responsibilities and Other Directorships 

Independent Non-Executive Directors 
 
Dr. Brian Derek Littlechild, 
Independent Non-Executive Director 
and member of the Audit Committee 

65 Dr. Littlechild was appointed to our Board on 2 May 2001. He has 
a Bachelor of Science degree and a Doctor of Philosophy from 
Nottingham University. He is a member of the Institution of Civil 
Engineers and was a Fellow of the Hong Kong Institution of 
Engineers, Member of American Society of Civil Engineers, 
Member of Academy of Experts and Editorial Panel Member of 
Geotechnique. He joined Ove Arup in 1972, and worked in Hong 
Kong for over 20 years, where he served as an associate director. 
He has 25 years of experience in geotechnical engineering. He 
has authored numerous geotechnical and related papers. In 
particular, he led a major program of testing of foundations in 
Hong Kong which subsequently formed the basis of a section of 
the new Code of Practice for Foundations in Hong Kong. His 
extensive experience in Hong Kong, China and the Philippines 
covers a large number of geotechnical projects including large 
power plants and infrastructure projects as well as major 
buildings. 
 

Appointed on 2 May 2001. 
 

Mr. Leslie James Charles, 
Independent Non-Executive Director 
and member of the Audit Committee  

69 Mr. Charles was appointed a Non-Executive Director on 30 
March 2007. He lives in Australia and was educated at the NSW 
Institute of Technology (Mechanical Engineering). At the NSW 
Institute of Technology he obtained his Mechanical Engineering 
Diploma. He has 42 years experience in project and construction 
of industrial projects and management, construction and building 
services engineering, with a diverse background in administration 
and management of major commercial, institutional, public and 
industrial developments. 
 

Appointed on 30 March 2007. 
 

Mr. Djan Faridz, 
Independent Non-Executive Director 
and member of the Audit Committee  

59 Mr. Faridz was appointed an Independent Non-Executive Director 
on 30 March 2007. Mr. Faridz lives in Indonesia. Mr. Faridz 
received a diploma in Architecture from Tarumanegara 
University. In 1973, he joined IMPA Energy and was involved in 
the company’s trading business. In 1974 he became a member of 
the Board of Commissioners of P.T. Impa. In 1976, he was 
appointed as managing director of P.T. Impa, and was involved in 
IMPA Energy’s power projects in Indonesia. He formed two 
companies in 1980 and 1982, namely PT Priamanaya Djan 
International and PT Austrodwipa Energy, focusing on trading, 
consultancy in power generating and undertaking contracting 
works. He was the president commissioner of PT CEPA 
Indonesia, an independent power producer of Tanjung Jati “B” 
1320 MW coal-fired combined cycle plant in Central Java, 
Indonesia since May 1996. 
 

Appointed on 30 March 2007. 
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Name 
 

Age Experience, Special Responsibilities and Other Directorships 

Independent Non-Executive Directors 
 
Mr. Michael Philip O’Neill, 
BE., FIEA., CpEng., RPEQ., JP. 
Independent Non-Executive Director 
and member of the Audit Committee  

62 Mr. O´Neill was appointed to our Board as an Independent Non-
Executive Director on 20 April 2007. Mr. O’Neill was educated at 
Sydney University (Engineering). He is a fellow of the Institute of 
Engineers, Australia, a registered professional engineer 
Queensland, a chartered professional engineer, a registered 
A.P.E.C. engineer, a member of the Concrete Institute of 
Australia and of the Master Builders Association NSW. He is also 
a holder of Building Licence NSW. He has over 39 years of 
experience as a site engineer and design engineer in various 
engineering and concrete pre-stressing companies. In 1982 he 
founded and has since been a director of APS Group, a concrete 
prestressing company and general contracting with business based 
in Australia and the Middle East.  
 
Mr. O’Neill is a registered Justice of the Peace in NSW, 
Australia. 
 

Appointed on 20 April 2007. 
 

 
Company Secretary 
 
Mr Ian William Jordan was appointed Company Secretary on 12 April 2001.  He is also a Director of the Company. 
 
Directors’ Meetings 
 
The number of meetings of Directors held during the year and the numbers of meetings attended by each Director were 
as follows: 
 

 
 
 

Number of Meetings 
held while in Office 

Number of Meetings 
attended while in Office 

   
Mr. Stewart William George Elliott 10 10 

Mr. Ian William Jordan   10 9 
Mr. Brian Jeffrey Allen 10 10 
Mr. Leslie James Charles 10 5 
Mr. Djan Faridz 10 5 
Dr. Brian Derek Littlechild  10 6 
Mr. Michael Phillip O’Neill 10 7 
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Principal Activities 
 
The consolidated entity’s principal activities during the course of the financial year were: 
 
• Development, design, construction, operation and maintenance of power stations;  

 
• Development of liquefied natural gas, design, construction, operation and maintenance of LNG plants and road 

transport of LNG, and design and development of LNG receiving terminals;  
 

• Development of wind farm and hydro-electric power plants; and  
 

• Exploration, development and production of gas and oil, design construction, operation and maintenance of gas, 
processing plants and gas pipelines; 

 
There were no significant changes in the nature of these activities during the year. 
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Review and Results of Operations 
 
The consolidated entity’s results amounted to a net profit attributable to owners of the parent of US$20,091,000 (2009: 
Loss of US$9,112,000).  
 
We currently own and operate projects in Indonesia and Australia: 
 

 
Indonesian Operations (Current and Proposed)                   
 

 
Australian Operations (Current and Proposed) 

South 
Sulaw

INDONE

Sengka

Sengkang 
Gas Field 

Sengkang 
Power Plant 

Proposed 
Sengkang 

LNG Terminal 

 

 

Abbot 
Point 

 Port Bonython LNG 
Terminal 

Brisbane 

Sydney 

Canberra 

Melbourne 

Adelaide 

Eromanga 
Gasfield 

Eromanga 

Gilmore 

Southern 
Cooper 
Project 
PEL96 

Alice Springs 

Gilmore 
Gasfield & 
Proposed  
LNG Plant 

Moomba 

 

 

 
 

 

 
 

Abbot Point 
LNG Plant & 

“Gas Highway” Alice 
Springs 
Power 

Station & 
LNG Plant 

PEL 96 
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POWER OPERATIONS 
 
Our Company has interests in two operating power plants – Sengkang Power Plant (Indonesia) and Alice Springs Power 
Plant (Australia). 
 

Sengkang Power Plant, Indonesia 
 

      
  60MW Extension (2008)    Initial CCGT 135MW (1997) 

 
The Sengkang Power Plant is owned and operated by our subsidiary company PT Energi Sengkang (PTES). We 
acquired from El Paso its shares in PTES, under a sale and purchase agreement dated 15 September 2006, increasing 
our ownership from 47.5% to our current 95% thus also providing us with control over this key asset. Medco Sengkang 
holds a 5% interest in PTES, satisfying Indonesian governance and ownership requirements for power producers. 
 

 
150Kv Switchyard 

 
The construction of our Sengkang Power Plant in South Sulawesi, Indonesia, was completed on-budget and the plant 
commenced initial commercial operations in September 1997, becoming the first independently owned gas-fired power 
station in Indonesia. Our Sengkang Power Plant is comprised of a combined cycle plant and auxiliary facilities. It is 
designed to deliver 135MW in combined cycle to the South Sulawesi electricity grid operated by PLN.    
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Sengkang 60MW Power Plant Expansion Project 
 

 
Site Office and Control Room, Sengkang 

 
Commercial operation of the additional 60MW generating unit commenced on 17 November 2008. This was 5 months 
ahead of contracted schedule agreed with PLN. Funding for the 60MW Sengkang Power Plant Expansion was provided 
by a combination of our own cash flow and non-recourse project financing. 

 
In order to accommodate the increased gas supply to our Sengkang Power Plant resulting from the Sengkang Expansion, 
we carried out a programme of investment in our gas infrastructure in 2008 and 2009 involving capital expenditure of 
US$15 million for improvements and supplements to our gas production, pipeline and gas processing facilities.  
 
During the period of November 2009 until February 2010 the 60MW plant experienced an unforeseen forced outage 
requiring repair work to the unit.  This work was successfully completed and the unit returned to commercial 
operations.  All material costs incurred were covered through insurances held by the company for material damage and 
business interruption insurance. 
. 

 
Sengkang 60MW Expansion Unit 
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During the past three years, the availability factor was at least 92.0%, exceeding the agreed availability factor of 85% 
specified in the PPA. 
 
The following table sets out the Sengkang Power Plant´s output and actual availability factor during the past three years: 

   
 Plant Output Plant Availability Factor 
Fiscal Year Ended 30 June   
2010 1,322GWh   92.5%* 
2009 1,389GWh 92.0% 
2008 1,116GWh 96.3% 
Average 1,276GWh 93.6% 

   
    ＊Calculation excludes the 60MW plant during the period of the unforeseen forced outage. 

 
Operation and Maintenance Arrangements 
 
The operation and maintenance of the Sengkang Power Plant has been contracted by PTES to Alstom Indonesia under 
an O&M Agreement entered into in November 1996. The O&M Agreement provides for a monthly payment to Alstom 
Indonesia comprised of a fixed payment, based on a contractually agreed formula, and a variable payment based on the 
amount of electricity dispatched. The O&M Agreement was renewed in September 2009 and now expires in March 
2012. 
 

 
Typical Gas Turbine Power Plant under Construction 
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Alice Springs Power Plant, Australia 
 
Our wholly owned subsidiary, Central Energy Power (CEP), owns and operates an 8.68 MW gas-fired power station 
located at Alice Springs in the Northern Territory, adjacent to our Alice Springs LNG Plant. This power plant 
commenced commercial operation in December 1996. Our Alice Springs Power Plant is comprised of four spark-
ignition gas-fired generating engines. During the past three years, the average availability factor was approximately 
78%. In the fiscal year of 2010, the Alice Springs Power Plant generated 49.42 GWh of power, with an availability 
factor of 80.38%. 
 
The following table sets out the output and availability factors for the Alice Springs Power Plant during the past three 
years:  
 

 Plant Output Plant Availability Factor 
Fiscal Year Ended 30 June   
2010 49.42 GWh 80% 
2009 48.02 GWh 79% 
2008 49.37 GWh 74% 
Average 48.94 GWh 78% 

 
Under the PPA, Northern Territories Power and Water Corporation (NT PWC) supplies natural gas to fuel the Alice 
Springs Power Plant through a 9 km spur pipeline owned by Central Energy Australia (CEA), the owner of the Alice 
Springs LNG Facility. The gas price under the PPA is partially inflation adjusted.  
 
CEP is responsible for the operation, repair and maintenance of our Alice Springs Power Plant. 
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GAS OPERATIONS 
 
Indonesian Gas Operations 
 
• Sengkang Gas Field, Indonesia  

 

    
EEES Kampung Baru Sengkang, Indonesia Central Processing Plant (CPP) 

 
We increased our ownership interest in Energy Equity Epic Sengkang (EEES), which owns and operates the Sengkang 
PSC, from 50% to 100% following completion of the sale and purchase agreement for the EI Paso Buyout entered into 
on 15 September 2006, giving us full ownership and control of this asset. The Sengkang block Production Sharing 
Contract (PSC) sold 14.27 BCF of gas during the year compared with 13.64 BCF in 2009.  
 
EEES has fulfilled its obligations under Indonesian regulations and the terms of the Sengkang PSC in respect of 
expenditure on exploration and development activities and has complied with its obligation to relinquish areas of the 
Sengkang Contract Area in accordance with the agreed timetable specified in the Sengkang PSC. The Sengkang PSC 
was originally entered into on 24 October 1970 and therefore differs from the terms of a PSC entered into under the 
current Indonesian PSC regime. The most material difference is that our Sengkang PSC is not subject to a Domestic 
Market Obligation (DMO) for natural gas sales, which would typically be included in a more recent PSC, which means 
that we are not obliged to market a minimum proportion of the gas to Indonesian customers. This currently has no 
implications for us as all gas EEES produces is supplied domestically to BPMIGAS* and ultimately sold to PTES. 
However, this provides us with the potential to export gas to markets outside Indonesia.  
 

 
EEES Kampung Baru Sengkang, Indonesia Central Processing Plant (CPP) 
 

* BPMIGAS supervises and controls the Productions Sharing Contracts (PSC) engaged in explorations, exploitations, and marketing activities. The 
company monitors oil and gas and Liquified Natural Gas (LNG) production. Additionally, it engages into community development projects. 
BPMIGAS was founded in 2002 and is headquartered in Jakarta Selatan, Indonesia. 
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The Sengkang PSC, covering the 2,925.23 sq. km Sengkang Contract Area, includes one developed and producing gas 
field (Kampung Baru) and four undeveloped gas fields (Walanga, Sampi Sampi, Bonge and Sallo Bullo) with 672 BCF 
proved and probable reserves as at 30 June 2010. Development of gas fields in the Sengkang Contract Area has to date 
been limited to the requirements for the supply of gas to the Sengkang Power Plant and its respective expansions from 
the Kampung Baru Gas Field. We have identified thirty prospects, that is, potential accumulations of gas within the 
Sengkang Contract Area which have not so far been drilled, giving substantial additional prospective gas resource in 
excess of 2.25 TCF. In addition there are numerous leads in the Sengkang Contract Area which require more data 
acquisition or evaluation that could increase the prospective resource to between 5 TCF to 7 TCF. Our petroleum 
consultant, Helix RDS, has verified that as at 26 August 2008 remaining proved developed and undeveloped reserves 
from our Kampung Baru Gas Field, which is the only field currently in production, are 388 BCF. In respect of the 
further four gas fields, which have not yet been developed, proved undeveloped reserves are 170 BCF, with further 
probable reserves of 114 BCF respectively.  
 
Of the proved reserves in our Sengkang Contract Area, approximately 250 BCF will be required to meet the gas demand 
of the Sengkang Power Plant with ultimate capacity of 315MW to the end of the Sengkang PPA in September 2022.  
 
EEES is responsible for the repair and maintenance of our Sengkang Gas Plant and Sengkang Gas Field infrastructure. 
Natural gas from the production wells in the Sengkang Contract Area is piped to the central processing plant (“CPP”) 
located in Wajo Regency, South Sulawesi. The CPP processes the gas to reduce the water, hydrogen sulphide and 
carbon dioxide content and the gas is then transmitted via a 29 km 8-inch diameter pipeline to the Sengkang Power 
Plant. Our gas production, pipeline and gas processing facilities have been and continue to be improved and 
supplemented in order to accommodate the increased gas supply to our Sengkang Power Plant for the Sengkang 
Expansion and the second phase Sengkang Expansion. 
 

     
Drilling KB8 in Kampung Baru 

 
Due to the availability of existing seismic data EEES elected not to carry out a seismic programme. With the agreement 
of BPMIGAS, EEES developed a work programme and budget for 2009 to permit the work-over of two existing wells 
and the drilling of a new well in Kampung Baru.  EEES also submitted a Plan of Development (POD) to BPMIGAS to 
commence drilling of the four undeveloped gasfields (Walaga, Sampi Sampi, Bongi and Sallo Bullo) by re-entering 
previously drilled wells that flowed gas or drilling adjacent to those wells.  EEES is awaiting BPMIGAS’ approval of 
the POD and the associated work programme and budget in order to commence this drilling and the subsequent 
development of these gasfields. 
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Map of the Sengkang Contract Area 
 

 
 
•  Further Gas Interests, Indonesia  

 

    
Indonesia-Sengkang Drilling Rig on site Well Work Overs and Production Gas Well Drilling 

 
Other subsidiary companies of our group were parties to 20-year technical assistance contracts (or “TAC”) entered into 
with Pertamina (BPMIGAS’ predecessor) to operate the Biru, Talang Babat and Gajah Besar fields in West Sumatra. 
The terms of each TAC required a minimum expenditure on exploration, failing which Pertamina would be entitled to 
terminate the relevant TAC. As this minimum expenditure was not met for the Biru, Talang Babat and Gajah Besar TAC, 
we treat these contracts as having expired and as currently having no commercial value. We are currently in discussions 
with BPMIGAS to investigate the potential to reinstate or retender for these contracts but we have made no decision to 
do so. 
 
Our subsidiaries are also parties to a Production Sharing Contract (“PSC”) to operate the Bone Bay gas field, offshore 
South Sulawesi, under which certain payment obligations have already been met. We continue to actively pursue a 
dialogue with BPMIGAS to agree on a development program for the PSC.  
 
 
 
 



Directors’ Report 
Energy World Corporation Limited and Its Controlled Entities 
 

Energy World Corporation Limited     Page 20 

 
Australian Gas Operations 
 

 
 
• Australian Gas Fields, Queensland 
 

 
 
Our wholly owned subsidiary, Australian Gasfields Ltd (AGL), is the owner and operator and holds ATPs or PLs in the 
Gilmore Gas Field and the Eromanga Gas Field (which includes the Bunya gas field and Cocos gas field), all located in 
Queensland, Australia. AGL also owns gas processing plants and pipe infrastructure for the gas produced from the 
Gilmore Gas Field and Eromanga Gas Field. The Gilmore Gas Field was in production between 1995 and 2003 
supplying gas to our Barcaldine Power Plant until the plant was sold in 2003 as part of our Group´s debt reduction 
programme. We produced gas from our Eromanga Gas Field from 1999 to supply gas to Pasminco´s Century Mine Ltd, 
an independent third party. Following the administration of Pasminco Century Mine Ltd, we terminated this gas supply 
arrangement on 12 October 2001 and production from our Eromanga Gas Field was suspended on 13 October 2001.  
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Since we suspended gas production from the Gilmore Gas Field and Eromanga Gas Field the respective gas wells, gas 
processing plants and pipe infrastructure have been held on a care and maintenance basis.  Horizontal well and large 
hydraulic fracture programmes are under consideration to increase deliverability of gas from the reservoirs in the 
Gilmore Gas Field. We are also reviewing plans for our Eromanga Gas Field, with appraisal well programmes on the 
existing accumulations and exploration wells under consideration. In addition, existing coal bed methane seams have 
been identified. Results from the recently spudded Cuban 1 exploration well were favourable, and we therefore propose 
to formulate a development programme for confirmed resources which we consider to be commercially exploitable. We 
are conducting a feasibility study of our proposed Queensland LNG Facilities on the north Queensland coast which may 
provide the opportunity to further exploit gas resources from these properties provided we also obtain necessary 
licences and other authorizations.   
 
• Gilmore Gas Field 
 

 
Gilmore Gas Processing Plant 

 
The Gilmore Gas Field area under block PL65, hosts 3 production wells which are connected by pipeline to the Gilmore 
Gas Plant and by pipeline to the Cheepie-Barcaldine gas pipeline which supplies gas to the Queensland pipe gas 
distribution network. The Gilmore Gas Plant has a design capacity of 12 MMscf/d. 
 

 
Gilmore Gas Processing Plant 

 
Under the terms of PL65, AGL is under no further obligation to produce gas or make further investment in the field. 
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•  Eromanga Gas Field 
 

 
Eromanga Gas Processing Plant Inlet Pipework 

 
AGL is registered as the holder of ATP-549P, comprising ATP-549P (East) and ATP-549P (West). ATP-549P (East) is 
comprised of the Cypress sub-area and Solitaire sub-area. AGL has a 55% beneficial interest in the Cypress sub-area, 
with Great Artesian Oil and Gas Limited holding 40% and Strike Oil Limited holding 5%. AGL has recently increased 
its beneficial interest in the Solitaire sub-area, to 100%. AGL holds the legal title to, but has no beneficial interest 
in,ATP-549P (West). AGL also has a 100% interest in petroleum leases PL115 (Bunya) and PL116 (Cocos), which have 
been developed from the original grant of ATP 549 (East) and each of which contains production wells. 
 

    
Eromanga Gas Plant Dehydration                Eromanga Gas Plant Co² Removal Unit 

 
The Eromanga Gas Plant is located on AGL´s ATP-549P (East) licence area and is connected by pipeline to the 
production wells on PL115 (Bunya), PL116 (Cocos) and Vernon 1 (owned and operated by an independent third party) 
with an outlet line for processed gas linked to the Mt. Isa Pipeline serving the Queensland piped gas network. The 
Eromanga Gas Plant is designed to be run at 12 MMscf/d. Land use rights for AGL´s Eromanga Gas Plant are provided 
under the terms of PL115 and PL116, AGL is under no obligation to operate or make further investment in these areas.  
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Cuban 1 Oil and gas exploration well 
 

 
 
On 8 May 2009 AGL spudded the Cuban 1 oil and gas exploration well. Seams of coal were first detected at 160 metres 
depth in Cuban 1 and these were co-incident with the first occurrence of gas. The traces of coal in the cutting samples 
and associated gas persisted through the section of the well 160 metres to 620 metres depth, and the section 620 metres 
to 730 metres featured an increase in coal with heavier gas levels, increasing with the coal content.  The coal is rich in 
methane and is typical of that experienced at similar depths across large sections of Queensland’s coal basins, where it 
is currently being extracted as Coal Seam Methane. 
 

    
Rig Site - Pre-Spud Meeting for Safety & Operation                                 Rig Site - Works Cable and Hooks 

 
Evaluation of the deeper Toolachee and Patchawarra Formations for gas productivity show the gas sands to be in line 
with pre-drilling expectations.  However what is believed to be significant gas resources confirmed during the drilling 
in the basel Patchawarra sandstone zone at 2,530-2,555 metres could not be logged due to the closure of coal ledges in 
the shallow Toolachee Formation. 
 
Of significant interest is the fact that the Permian Coal Seams were much thicker than expected with a net thickness of 
20 metres. Further evaluation of theses coal seams will be used to develop the resource assessments of the Company. 
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               Spud Commenced at 1322 HRS               Halliburton Pump Truck & Bulk Cement Tanker for Cementing 

 
The drilling of Cuban 1 and the associated geological, geophysical, and revaluation of seismic studies conducted on 
ATP549P were in compliance with the Authorized Activities agreed for the 2005 - 2009 work programme, including the 
financial expenditure commitment, and supported Australian Gasfields Limited’s application for renewal of the 
ATP549P for the period 2009-2013 which has been granted.. 
 
Other Australian Gas and Oil Interests 
 

      
                   Brewer Estate LNG Plant                 Cuban 1 Drilling Tower 

 
• AGL has a 19.6% interest in PL184 (known as the Thylungra Gas Field) in Queensland located near to our 

Eromanga Gas Field. Beach Petroleum Limited, an independent third party, is the operator of Thylungra block, 
PL184. The economic climate has lead to the proposed work program for PL184, including the drilling of an 
additional exploratory well being postponed by Beach Petroleum Limited. Some minor geological and geophysical 
works were undertaken by Beach Petroleum Limited during the year requiring AGL to fund its participation in this 
development to maintain its percentage interest. In the 12 month period ending 30 June 2010, funding required for 
AGL´s participation was A$84,000. 
 

• AGL has a 2% interest in ATP-259P (known as the Naccowlah Block) which is near to our Eromanga Gas Field. 
AGL also has a 2% interest in a number of petroleum leases which lie within ATP-259P. 

 
The Naccowlah Block is operated by Santos Limited, an independent third party, under a joint operating agreement 
originally entered into in 1982 to which AGL subsequently became a party. Santos Limited commenced an 
extensive drilling and reserve development programme with some 25 wells drilled in the course of 2007 and in 
2008, and commenced additional works to provide for a crude oil tanker loading facility and associated road works  
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for crude oil production from this field. Based on information provided by Santos Limited as at 30 June 2010, AGL 
believes its share of reserves in the block is 0.15 MMBbls of proved and probable reserves and 0.20 MMBbls of 
possible reserves of oil. AGL receives a share of the revenues from the sale of oil produced from the Naccowlah 
Block currently equivalent to approximately 14,700 barrels p.a. but also bears its share of development costs and 
operating expenses. This is our only oil producing asset. In the year ended 30 June 2010, funding required for 
AGL´s participation was A$1.97 million. 
 

• On 15 July 2010, Strike Energy Limited, the operator of PEL 96 of which AGL has a 33.3% interest – issued an 
ASX release on the Southern Cooper CSG drilling programme. Further to its ASX release, on 26 July 2010, Strike 
Energy issued a press release confirming encouraging results in the Southern Cooper exploration programme. and 
advised that the PEL 96 Joint Venture had suspended the Forge 1 well at 1,351 meters pending further evaluation. 
Suspension of the well will enable the joint venture to recommence drilling at a later stage with different drilling 
equipment to further evaluate the Epsilon Formation coals (first objective) already cored and the deeper 
Patchawarra Formation coals (second objective) yet to be drilled. 
 

 
 
Forge 1 has successfully cored a 15 meter thick coal seam in the first objective, the Epsilon Formation, between the 
depths of 1,311 and 1,326 metres. The well has been wireline logged and the wireline log interpretation of core data 
and gas content analysis will take place over the next few months. The results achieved to date are very promising 
for the CSG prospectivity of the PEL 96 permit area.  

 
The PEL 96 Joint Venture intends to finalise the planning of the next stage of its Southern Cooper drilling 
programme after confirmation of the availability of a suitable drilling rig with the capacity and flexibility to drill 
the other identified targets in the permit area. The Forge 1 well is the first of a two to four well programme in the 
Southern Cooper to target specifically coal seam gas potential. The prospective gas resource potential of the 
Permian age coal measures in PEL 96 is estimated at 3,700 to 9,300 petajoules, or approximately 3.7 to 9.3 trillion 
cubic feet. The Forge 1 well is located 16 kilometres west of the open access Moomba to Adelaide gas pipeline 
which has spare capacity due to the declining production of natural gas from the Cooper Basin. For the period of 1 
January 2010 to 30 June 2010, AGL has been required to fund A$565,865 towards drilling, engineering and 
overhead. AGL will be required to fund its participation in this development which will only be known once the 
development plan has been agreed upon.     
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Reserve Movement Schedule (EWC Share) 
 
GAS 
 

Permit Field 
Reserves 
30.06.09 

bcf 
Production Remaining 

Additional 
Identified 
Reserves 

Reserves 
30.06.10 

bcf 
       
PL 65 Gilmore 20.3 - 20.3 - 20.3 
ATP-549P All 11.3 - 11.3 - 11.3 
Sengkang * All 686.0 14.3 671.7 - 671.7 
Total Gas Reserves 717.6 14.3 703.3 - 703.3 
 
*    :  Reserves quoted being proved plus probable (2P) 
bcf :  billion cubic feet 
 
OIL 
 

Permit Field 
Reserves 
30.06.09 

mboe 
Production Remaining 

Additional 
Identified 
Reserves 

Reserves 
30.06.10 

mboe 

ATP 259 Naccowlah 
Block 573.3 14.7 558.6 - 558.6 

Total Oil Reserves 573.3 14.7 558.6 - 558.6 
 
mboe :  thousand barrels 
 
 
Interests in Oil and Gas Permits 
 
Tenement Location Basin Equity Operator 
PL 115 QLD COOPER 100% EWC 
PL 116 QLD COOPER 100% EWC 
PL 65 QLD ADAVALE 100% EWC 
PL 184 QLD COOPER 19.6% Beach Petroleum 
ATP-549P  QLD COOPER 100% EWC 
ATP-259P QLD COOPER 2% Santos 
SENGKANG PSC INDONESIA SOUTH SULAWESI 100% EWC 
BONE PSC * INDONESIA OFFSHORE SULAWESI 100% EWC 
     
*      Pending BPMIGAS agreement to a development program 
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LNG OPERATIONS 
 
Australian LNG Operations 
 
• Alice Springs LNG Facility, Australia 
 

 
Alice Springs LNG Plant 

 
Central Energy Australia (CEA) owns a 454 TJ/annum (approximately 10,000 TPA) LNG facility at Alice Springs in the 
Northern Territory, Australia, which was operated by CEA for more than 18 years until the suspension of operations in 
2006 at the end of the take-or-pay contract with Northern Territories Power and Water Corporation (NT PWC). The 
Alice Springs LNG Facility is now held on a care and maintenance basis. The original take-or-pay contract for the 
supply of LNG to the NT PWC was executed between CEA and NT PWC on 16 April 1987 with LNG supply 
commencing on 16 October 1989. Under this contract, CEA supplied LNG by cryogenic road tanker to a remote power 
station located in Uluru (Ayers Rock), operated by NT PWC, before converting the LNG back to combustible material 
for fuelling the power generating equipment. When this LNG supply contract expired in 2006, NT PWC switched its 
fuel supply to gas in the form of Compressed Natural Gas, from a third party supplier. Production of LNG at the Alice 
Springs LNG Facility was then suspended as the Alice Springs LNG Facility was supplied with natural gas from the 
Palm Valley Field by NT PWC under the LNG supply contract and this supply ceased upon the expiry of the LNG 
supply contract. 
 

 
Alice Springs LNG Plant, Australia Yulara Unloading with Ayers Rock in the Background. 

(showing cryogenic road tankers) 
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LNG Unloading Facilities at Yulara 
 
The innovative Alice Springs LNG Facility was our first LNG development and the first commercial LNG facility in 
Australia. This small-scale modular LNG train confirmed the feasibility of LNG as an alternative to diesel fuel for 
remote area power generation where grid-supplied electricity or piped gas is not available. By operating a remote LNG 
facility located at Alice Springs and transporting LNG by road tanker to a remote power station located in Uluru (Ayers 
Rock) for more than 18 years, we gained experience and established a proven track record in converting natural gas to 
LNG and in transporting LNG at cryogenic temperatures to remote power plants.  This core experience provides the 
background for our development of our proposed Gilmore LNG facility (Refer to further plans and prospects). 
 
CEA is the owner of a 9 km spur pipeline, connecting the Alice Springs LNG Facility to the Palm Valley gas field. CEA 
has a tolling agreement with NT PWC pursuant to which NT PWC transports gas to third parties through our pipeline. 
NT PWC pays CEA a monthly charge under the tolling agreement depending upon the quantity of gas transported. 
 
CEA continues to look at further opportunities to sell LNG from our Alice Springs LNG Facility to customers who are 
seeking a competitively priced and clean fuel source for their off-grid power generation, particularly in the mining 
industry. These plans are currently being developed in alignment with the proposed Gilmore LNG facility referenced in 
“Future Plans and Prospects.” As our Alice Springs LNG Facility is dependent on a supply of gas from NT PWC and 
our Group does not own local reserves of gas, we would need to obtain gas supply from a third party in conjunction 
with such activity.  
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Current Developments  
 
• Sengkang LNG Project 
 

 
Artist’s Impression of a Modular LNG Plant 

 
Of the proved reserves in our Sengkang Contract Area, approximately 250 BCF will be required to meet demand from 
BPMIGAS and PLN under the Gas Supply Agreement and any requisite extension thereto when the Sengkang Power 
Plant is upgraded to 315 MW as referred to above. In addition, we have calculated that more than 2.25 TCF of 
prospective gas resources may be available in prospects which have been identified in the Sengkang Contract Area. In 
order to exploit these gas reserves and prospective resources, we are constructing an LNG facility and export 
infrastructure referred to as the “Sengkang LNG Facility”, using our modular LNG train, on the South Sulawesi 
coastline, in the same region as our Sengkang Contract Area and Sengkang Power Plant. 
 
The planned Sengkang LNG Facility will have a production capacity of 2 MTPA and combine four modular LNG trains, 
each with a production capacity of 0.5 MTPA. Production of LNG from the first two modular LNG trains which was 
originally planned to commence in June 2010 has been delayed pending approval from BPMIGAS of a plan of 
development for the gas required for the LNG facility from the Sengkang gas field.  First production will now likely 
occur by First Quarter 2012. The remaining two modular LNG trains are planned to commence commercial production 
of LNG operation at quarterly intervals thereafter providing a total LNG capacity for the Sengkang LNG Facility of 2 
MTPA. 
 
We already have proved gas reserves for the first 2 units, sufficient to produce 1 MTPA of LNG for more than 5 years. 
By utilising existing gas reserves for this LNG production we plan to be able to use internally generated cash flow to 
finance the foreseen further gas field development in the Sengkang Contract Area. If development of gas resources 
justify (which cannot be known at the present time), we envisage expanding the capacity of the Sengkang LNG Facility 
up to 5 MTPA through a phased development of additional 0.5 MTPA modular LNG trains. 
 
Our business strategy continues to be to expedite the construction of the Sengkang LNG Facility without the need to 
first prove up substantial gas resources in the Sengkang Contract Area or conclude long term off-take agreements with 
customers for our LNG. This non-traditional approach to LNG development rests on the relatively lower cost of our 
Sengkang LNG Facility, which will utilise our modular LNG trains instead of conventional large-scale LNG trains, and 
our ability to finance this key project from cash flow generated from our business operations.  
 
The following diagram shows the principal features of an LNG liquefaction and export facility, LNG vessel and LNG 
receiving and regasification facility: 
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The following diagram shows the principal features of an indicative plant layout for our Sengkang LNG Project, which 
may not represent the eventual state of the Sengkang LNG Facility:  
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• Contract and Supply Status for the Sengkang LNG Project 
 
The contractual structure for the Sengkang LNG Project is in place and the major components of the Sengkang LNG 
Facility, to enable production of 2 MTPA of LNG, were ordered during 2007 are have been fabricated in the USA, 
Canada and Germany and ready for shipment to Indonesia.  
 

      
Gas Pre-treatment Equipment in Open Storage Yard in Edmonton 

 

   
   T4 Cold Box under Assembly in Chart’s Workshop in         T1 Cold Box Finished Painting at Chart’s 

                          New Iberia                      Workshop Yard in New Iberia 
 
In February 2009 we acquired the land required by the Sengkang LNG project and commenced civil works to facilitate 
the shipment of the major equipments to site.  
 
• Engineering, Procurement and Construction (EPC) 
 
Slipform (H.K.), as the proposed EPC contractor, has the responsibility for the engineering, procurement and 
construction of the Sengkang LNG Facility on a fixed price, turn-key basis. This will involve co-ordination of all major 
and material equipment suppliers, arranging freight and delivery of major equipment to the site, providing any balance 
of plant items not being provided by subcontractors and completion of all civil and construction works. The EPC 
Contract between South Sulawesi LNG, Slipform (H.K.), CEA and Kerbridge Energy Pty Ltd is based on International 
Federation of Consulting Engineers (FIDIC) Conditions of Contract for EPC Turnkey Projects as amended to reflect the 
arrangements between the parties. The contract value of the EPC Contract is US$350 million. CEA and Kerbridge 
Energy Pty Ltd are party to the EPC Contract as providers of LNG advisory services to Slipform (H.K.). 
 
• Civil Design and Construction 
 
Ove Arup & Partners International Ltd (“Ove Arup”) is responsible for designing the storage, loading, maritime and 
civil engineering for the Sengkang LNG Project. A design services agreement was entered into between Ove Arup and 
us on 24 July 2007. A further agreement was signed between Slipform (H.K.) and Ove Arup to novate to Slipform (H.K.) 
by a deed of novation between us, Ove Arup and Slipform (H.K.). 
 
 



Directors’ Report 
Energy World Corporation Limited and Its Controlled Entities 
 

Energy World Corporation Limited     Page 32 

 
• LNG Facility and Final Gas Clean Up 
 
Chart Energy & Chemicals Inc (“Chart”) is responsible for the supply and installation of four 0.5 MTPA modular LNG 
trains, including gas pre-treatment equipment. We have placed a contract for the supply and installation of this 
equipment with Chart on 4 August 2007. This will be novated to Slipform (H.K.) by a deed of novation between us, 
Chart and Slipform (H.K.). 
 
ü Chart has placed a subcontract with Siemens for four 27 MW electric-motor-driven main refrigerant 

compressors and one Siemens Aktiengesellschaft (“Siemens”) Robicon frequency convertor for electric-motor 
startup. 

 
ü Chart has placed a subcontract with TDE for the gas pre-treatment system. 

 
ü Chart will manufacture the LNG liquefier, which includes the cold box, air coolers, vessels and the liquid 

collection and vaporisation system. 
 
ü The modular LNG Equipment from Chart’s contract is ready for shipment to the site. 

 
• LNG Marine Loading-Arms 

 

     
 
A contract has been placed with Aker Kvaerner Woodfield Systems Limited for the supply of LNG marine loading-arms 
on 12 December 2007.  This will be novated to Slipform (H.K.). 
 
• Balance of Plant 
 

    
Modular Gas Turbine Power Plant (Scale Model)            Modular Gas Turbine Power Plant (Scale Model) 

 
Siemens Pte Ltd is responsible for the provision of certain balance of plant equipment, including high/medium/low 
voltage switchgear, fire fighting systems, distribution and control systems and electrical systems under a contract to be 
entered into with Slipform (H.K.). 
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• Operation & Maintenance 
 

 
Inside LNG Storage Tank 

 
An O&M Contract will be entered into between Sulawesi LNG, Slipform (H.K.), CEA and Kerbridge Energy Pty Ltd. 
Slipform (H.K.) as the provider of operation and maintenance services under the O&M Contract. CEA and Kerbridge 
Energy Pty Ltd are party to the EPC Contract as providers of LNG advisory services to Slipform (H.K.). 
 
The following diagram shows the contractual relationship for the supply of equipment and services concerning the 
Sengkang LNG Project: 
 

 
 



Directors’ Report 
Energy World Corporation Limited and Its Controlled Entities 
 

Energy World Corporation Limited     Page 34 

 
Total capital expenditure on the Sengkang LNG Project, to enable production of 2 MTPA of LNG is expected to be 
US$350 million which is expected to be financed from a combination of non-recourse project finance and the proceeds 
of our placement of shares in May 2008. We have mandated Standard Chartered Bank and Mizuho Bank as advisors for 
the financing of the Sengkang LNG Project. On 25 July 2008, we entered into a loan facility with Mizuho Bank and 
Standard Chartered Bank for a US$60 million loan facility and letter of credit to finance capital expenditure for or in 
connection with the Sengkang LNG Project and related projects entered into by EEES and PTES, including but not 
limited to making payments to Chart. 
 
The Ministry of Energy and Mineral Resources of Indonesia issued us with guidelines to obtain an operating licence for 
the Sengkang LNG Facility in November 2006. We are required, among other things, to satisfy certain conditions and 
obtain various other licences, permits and approvals as the Sengkang LNG Project proceeds before an operating licence 
is issued. We are in the process of complying with these guidelines and although these matters are proceeding 
satisfactorily the timing for the receipt of these approvals are also influenced by the approvals required from BPMigas 
for EEES to supply gas to the Sengkang LNG project and for the completion of a programme of gas infrastructure 
works, including an expansion of the Sengkang Gas Plant.  
 
The electric power required for the Sengkang LNG Facility is expected to be generated by our Sengkang Power Plant 
by way of the proposed 120MW expansion. We are in negotiations with PLN regarding this supply of electricity from 
the South Sulawesi electricity grid to the Sengkang LNG Facility which will require the construction of a 40 km 
transmission line connecting PLN´s Sengkang Switchyard at the Sengkang Power Plant with the Sengkang LNG 
Facility.  
 
Teaming up with industry leaders on modular LNG 
 
EWC has brought together distinguished global players and strong partners such as Chart Industries and Chemicals and 
Siemens to develop an efficient, electric drive modular LNG system. 
 
 

 
 
Strategic Alliances 
 
We have formed strategic alliances with the principal equipment suppliers to the Sengkang LNG Project, Chart and 
Siemens. Collaboration with these industry leaders over several years on our concept for a modular LNG train led to the 
realisation of our configuration for our modular LNG train. This will use standardised 0.5 MTPA LNG liquefaction 
units made up of proven “off the shelf” technology. We entered into strategic alliance agreements with Chart on 4 
August 2007 and with Siemens on 19 September 2007 respectively to develop further mid-scale modular LNG projects 
using our modular LNG train. 

Electrical and Rotating 
equipment 

Electrical BOP 

LNG Process Provider 
Cold Boxes 

Gas Treatment (By TDE) 
Liquefaction BOP 

 

Investor, Developer & Operator 
Civil and Process Engineering 

LNG Tank Construction 
Civil Works 

Operation and Maintenance 

ENERGY WORLD 

     

Other Consultants and Suppliers: 
 

CH.IV International – LNG Specialists 
Arup – Civil Engineering 

Woodfield – Loading Arms 
Penspen – Pipeline routes and design 

University of Southampton – Cryogenic Materials 
Testing 
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LNG Customers 
 
Discussions regarding LNG sales with parties in China, Japan, Indonesia and the Philippines are progressing positively, 
however confidentiality agreements signed do not authorise us to release specific details of the progress that we are 
making with some of these parties. With regard to the supply of LNG to the Indonesian domestic market, on 30 May 
2008, we entered into a MOU with Indonesia Power, a subsidiary of PLN, to negotiate the supply of LNG, initially to 
three of their power stations in Java and Bali. Within this MOU it is proposed that the supply of LNG will be under a 10 
year agreement, initially providing for the supply of up to 1.5 MTPA of LNG. If an agreement is concluded with 
Indonesia Power, we would develop LNG receiving and re-gasification facilities at these power plants to receive LNG 
from our Sengkang LNG Facility. Under the MOU, Indonesia Power is also seeking our supply of up to 5 MTPA of 
LNG in a subsequent phase to replace fuel oil in its other power stations.   On 25 March 2010, we announced that a 
Heads of Agreement had been reached with Tokyo Gas for the potential supply of 0.5MTPA of LNG from the Sengkang 
LNG plant. 
 
Comparison of our LNG approach and the conventional LNG approach  
 
For the last 30 or so years, the LNG business, especially in Asia, has consisted of a standard model, involving the 
construction of a large-scale LNG facility of 4 MTPA or above, at a cost currently in excess of US$3 billion, requiring a 
600 MMscf/d gas supply and 4.8 TCF or above certified proven gas reserves for a 20 year off-take contract. This model 
necessarily leads to a large quantity of stranded gas in Asia. In other words, gas reserves which are not considered 
commercially viable for a conventional LNG development. Moreover, 4.8 TCF is a major accumulation for a single 
field and aggregating the supply from a number of smaller fields to provide the required amount of gas is logistically 
and commercially difficult. 
 
Usually, in order to get an off-taker to commit to buy LNG under a long-term (20 year) contract, the gas feedstock has 
to be certified by an international certifying company like DeGolyer and MacNaughton. This process generally takes 
years to conclude; 5 years being very typical. Many gas wells usually have to be drilled in order to prove the existence 
of the required gas reserves which is a very capital intensive and time consuming process. 
 
Banks typically will require the commitment of an LNG purchaser under a long-term off-take contract in order to 
finance such LNG projects. This means that ground for an LNG facility usually cannot be broken until 4.8 TCF of gas 
reserves are proven, adding, in some cases, years to the start of a project. The financing costs for development and time 
to market for sale of LNG are paramount for a developer and have been major obstacles to the development of stranded 
gas fields. 
 
We believe we are breaking this model through pursuing a non traditional approach by providing a mid-scale LNG 
facility comprised of 0.5 MTPA modular LNG trains. One modular LNG train requires only 25 BCF per year or a 70 
MMscf/d gas supply, an amount relatively easily attainable from typical Indonesian gas wells. 
 
Our Sengkang LNG Facility´s modular construction provides substantial flexibility and downside risk protection 
because when a gas field is depleted, each modular LNG train and the associated plant is small enough to dismantle and 
relocate. 
 
Taking into account latest equipment pricings, we estimate that a typical LNG facility using our modular LNG train 
would cost approximately US$125-150 million dependent upon foundation and site conditions per 0.5 MTPA, complete 
with all support facilities (but excluding the primary gas processing plant which will be at the gas field and power 
generation which may be via a grid supply or captive generation plant). We believe that this capital cost allows us to 
consider that our standard for an LNG off-take contract can be for five years, rather than the twenty years for 
conventional LNG projects, and require a gas accumulation of only 125 BCF.  
 
Several 0.5 MTPA modular LNG trains can be combined as appropriate for larger accumulations of gas or to meet 
increased LNG demand. 
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FUTURE PLANS AND PROSPECTS 
 
120MW Expansion Plan for Sengkang Power Plant 
 

 
120MW Expansion Plan for Sengkang Power Plant 

 
On 8 July 2008, PLN agreed to the further expansion of our Sengkang Power Plant by 120MW to 315MW and at PLN’s 
request we filed an application in respect of this project to the Minister of Energy and Mineral Resources. On 31 July 
2008, we received approval from the Minister of Energy and Mineral Resources for the increase in output power from 
195MW to 315MW. Since receipt of these approvals, PTES and PLN have been discussing the Power Purchase 
Agreement (PPA) amendment to accommodate this increase in capacity output and to potentially extend the period of 
the PPA.  An Information Memorandum for project debt financing for this additional power plant expansion from 
195MW to 315MW was circulated to a number of banks with the original expectation for financial close of the project 
financing being achieved before calendar ended 2009, however PLN experienced delays in finalizing internal approvals 
for the expansion. Subsequently on 25 June 2010 a Letter of Intent was issued by PLN. Within the framework of this 
document the commercial operation date for the first 60MW unit (net capacity) is June 2011 and the commercial 
operation of the steam turbine is June 2012.  Project debt financing for the expansion should now be concluded within 
2010. 
 
The project involves the construction of a combined cycle plant, comprising one 60 MW (net capacity) Siemens gas 
turbine and generator unit, one heat recovery steam generating unit, one 60 MW (net capacity) steam turbine and 
generator unit and associated plant and infrastructure. The 120 MW (net capacity) combined cycle plant will require the 
gas supply to the Sengkang Power Plant to increase to 54 MMscf/d.  
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LNG Hub and 300MW CCGT Power Station, the Philippines 
 

 
Typical Layout for an LNG Hub 

 
We are developing an LNG Hub Terminal in the Philippines, planned to comprise an LNG import and export terminal, 
130,000 M³ LNG storage facility, re-gasification plant and a 2x150MW CCGT Power Station to be located on an 
industrial site on Pagbilao Grande Island in Quezon Province. Pagbilao Grande Island has been selected because of its 
strategic location, with sheltered deep water berthing for ocean-going vessels, as well as its proximity to road, rail and 
the 230kv national power grid in the Philippines. A 20-year lease of land with an area of 215,000sq.m. has been entered 
into with Malory Properties Inc. This site is adjacent to the Pagbilao Power Plant. A ground breaking ceremony attended 
by federal and local government officials and dignitaries was held on the 28 August 2009 and initial site formation 
works have been undertaken. 
 
The LNG hub will be used to facilitate the distribution of natural gas to four main markets: 1) A 2x150MW CCGT 
power station which EWC is planning to build adjacent to the Hub Terminal and will serve as an anchor buyer of the 
LNG; 2) Distribution of LNG for other small and mid-scale coastal power producers in the North Asia region; 3) 
Distribution of LNG & CNG for vehicle fuels and finally; 4) Distribution of the gas through a pipeline network to metro 
Manila as City Gas. In addition to the four main markets, the Hub Terminal will  also help the development of an Asian 
LNG “spot market”. This strategically located facility is intended to enable us to acquire cargoes from third-party LNG 
suppliers, pursuant to appropriate commercial terms.  
 

The Philippines
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Completion of our LNG Hub would allow LNG to be transported to the LNG Hub by large and medium-sized vessels 
for further distribution in smaller coastal vessels, to customers in the Philippines and North Asia region. We have been 
in preliminary discussions to charter specialist LNG vessels. In addition, smaller LNG cargoes from small and mid-
sized gas fields could be pooled with other cargos at the LNG Hub. The availability of independent LNG storage in the 
North Asia region will, we believe, encourage the transport of uncommitted LNG cargos (that is LNG which is not 
contracted to an off-taker) thus facilitating the development of an LNG spot market. The LNG Hub is planned to 
commence commercial operation in 2012. Due to changes made to the terminal capacity and associated infrastructure 
costs, the projected capital cost of the LNG Hub has now been revised to approximately USD100 million for the first 
phase and an additional USD50 million for the second phase which incorporates a further tank of 88,000m3. Under 
confidentiality agreements we have received very strong encouragement and interest from financiers and an industrialist 
in the Philippines to co-invest and develop the Hub Terminal. 
 
Our Sengkang LNG Facility will not rely on sales of LNG to the LNG Hub, given the alternative markets for its LNG 
under long-term contracts or spot market trades, however LNG cargoes may be shipped to the LNG Hub if considered 
commercially advantageous.  
  
 
Australian LNG Development 
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In Australia, we are carrying out a feasibility study and conducting preliminary discussions regarding our proposal to 
build a modular LNG train, LNG storage tank and export facility in two locations on the north Queensland coast. 
Locations under consideration are the Port of Abbot Point located approximately 25 km north of Bowen and the Port of 
Hay Point located just south of Mackay. Both locations have existing deep-water coal export terminals. 
 
We propose to install initially two modular LNG trains in each location and to construct a gas pipeline over 
approximately 350 km to connect the Queensland LNG Facilities to gas sources in the Bowen Basin and Surat Basin in 
the first phase of development. The Bowen Basin and Surat Basin areas contains many smaller gas fields, gas producers 
and potential sources of coal bed methane and is served by a domestic pipe network but has no export facility or wider 
market for their production. The LNG produced will be transported by LNG vessels to customers in Asia. The projected 
capital cost for the first phase of each Queensland LNG Facility is estimated at approximately US$350 million and 
US$388 million for the 350 km pipeline. The project is expected to be financed by a combination of equity and limited 
recourse debt. Production from the Queensland LNG Facilities is planned to commence within 24 months of approval 
of the LNG facility´s location. At our request a full feasibility study has also been completed by a major pipeline 
engineering group. The resultant study fully validates our pipeline cost estimates and technical/engineering assumptions. 
Furthermore, under confidentiality agreements, we have received strong expressions of interest from leading banks and 
gas industry specialists to co-invest with us in the project and to provide project debt finance.  
 
We are also evaluating the supply of gas to the Queensland LNG Facilities from our Gilmore Gas Field and Eromanga 
Gas Field at a later phase of development. This would require the construction of an additional gas pipeline over 
approximately 550 km linking the Gilmore Gas Field and Eromanga Gas Field to the pipeline proposed to be 
constructed from Bowen Basin to the Queensland LNG Facilities. The projected capital cost for the construction of the 
Queensland LNG Facilities and 900 km gas pipeline (comprising a 350 km pipeline to Bowen Basin and Surat Basin 
and a 550 km pipeline to Gilmore Gas Field and the Eromanga Gas Field) is estimated to be US$1.5 billion. 
 
Map showing our potential Queensland LNG Facilities and gas supply pipeline network 
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Gilmore LNG Plant and Distribution  
 

   
          Gilmore Gas Processing Plant                Deliver Batches of Fuel to Remote Sites Re-fuel Vehicles  

 
EWC is pursuing the development of a 56,000 TPA LNG processing plant in Gilmore, Queensland, Australia. The plant 
will be situated next to Australian Gasfields’ (subsidiary of EWC) gas processing plant which is currently in care and 
maintenance. The Gilmore gas field currently has 20.3 BCF of gas reserves which is enough to supply the LNG 
processing plant – at normal operating capacity – for approximately 10 years and beyond. We also have the option to 
purchase gas from the market or source gas from our other reserves around Australia depending upon prevailing market 
prices at the time if we wish to continue future use.  
 

    
 Entry Level Single 15,000 Gallon Vertical Tank 

 

    
        Typical LNG Refueling Station               Quad 15,000 Gallon Vertical Tanks 

 
The primary market for the LNG produced in Gilmore will be to “off-grid” mining operations which are currently 
burning diesel fuel to power their operations. Offering these mining operations a clean alternative to diesel fuel will not 
only compete on price per kWh but save them money on wear-and-tear of their generators. In addition to off-grid 
mining operations EWC plans to develop vehicle refueling stations along strategic trucking routes in Eastern Australia 
to market LNG as a Long Haul vehicle fuel. The following graphic illustrates potential locations for the off-grid mining 
sales as well as vehicle refueling stations.  
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Papua New Guinea LNG Development 
 

 
Satellite Image of Papua New Guinea 

 
In mid April 2009 the Governor of Gulf Province of Papua New Guinea invited Stewart Elliott, Managing Director 
EWC, to visit and explore ways of co-operating in the development of natural gas resources in the province.  Following 
these discussions a Memorandum of Agreement was signed for (a) the joint development of a pipeline to deliver natural 
gas to a 5 million tonnes per annum modular LNG export facility to be constructed at a new deep water port site located 
in the Gulf Province and (b) the development of domestic LNG for power generation and city gas and export of LNG 
from Papua New Guinea to Asian markets including Philippines, the People’s Republic of China and Japan. 
 

 Map of Papua New Guinea 
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The intention is to construct the LNG facility on a modular basis utilising the same technical and engineering process 
already developed for the Sengkang LNG Project. 
 
The Gulf Province will be responsible for the provision of the land, assistance with regulatory and government 
licensing and provision of the feed stock gas.  EWC will be responsible for the pipeline, infrastructure and development 
of the LNG production and export facility. 
 
Project investment costs and timetable are currently being worked on however it is expected that for the initial 
development 4 x 500,000 TPA units will be installed at an estimated cost of USD550 million – the pipeline and 
infrastructure will be in the order of USD250 million with the project development timetable commencing late 2010 or 
early 2011.   
 
Under confidentiality agreements, a number of leading banks and gas industry specialists have already expressed a 
strong interest in the project and have provided very positive reactions to involvement in this project both for equity 
and debt financing; we have also received approaches from potential gas suppliers within PNG seeking a basis of 
strategic co-operation utilizing our modular LNG programme. 
 
No significant capital will be expended by EWC on this project until the next stage of its development. 
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Research and Development 
 
We have undertaken research and development into the design of our modular LNG train and associated infrastructure 
but seek to utilise standard proven technology where possible. We are not presently conducting any independent 
research on technical development. 
 
Customers 
 
Our customers are PLN and NT PWC under the Sengkang Power Plant PPA and the Alice Springs Power Plant PPA 
respectively and BPMIGAS under the Gas Supply Agreement. We are dependent upon three major customers. 
 
Supplies and Suppliers 
 
Our suppliers are NT PWC, as supplier of gas to the Alice Spring’s Power Plant, BPMIGAS, as supplier of gas to the 
Sengkang Power Plant, and Chart, Siemens, Slipform (H.K.) and Ove Arup as key suppliers of equipment and services 
to the Sengkang LNG Project. Siemens and Alstom are our suppliers to our power plant operation in Sengkang. 
 
Intellectual Property Rights 
 
We have a 10-year licence agreement in respect of an LNG storage tank membrane design entered into between us and 
Gaztransport & Technigaz S.A.s. with effect from 28 June 2008.  The agreement provides the Company with 
intellectual property rights which include rights in certain inventions, designs and knowhow relating to the design, 
manufacture, installation and use of a tank for the storage of liquefied gas. 
 
Employees  
 
As at 30 June 2010, our Group had a total of 167 direct employees and approximately 250 other employees under third 
party sub-contracting arrangements primarily based in Sengkang, Indonesia. 
 
 
Disruptions and Injuries 
 
During the period of November 2009 until February 2010 the 60MW plant experienced an unforeseen forced outage 
requiring repair work to the unit.  This work was successfully completed and the unit returned to commercial 
operations.  All material costs incurred were covered though insurances held by the company for material damage and 
business interruption insurance. 
 
In May 2010 a demonstration occurred at the Sengkang gas plant which caused minor damage to our gas plant and 
facilities and injured one of our staff, causing the temporary suspension of the gas plant and consequently the gas 
supply to the Sengkang Power Plant. The demonstration arose from a dispute between BPMIGAS, the local government 
in South Sulawesi and the local people in Wajo (in which these facilities are situated) over revenue shares between in 
effect the Indonesian central government and local interests. The dispute did not concern our company or staff, and is 
the only such incident in a 14 year operating history. We received cooperation and assurances from the Government of 
South Sulawesi, local police and other authorities regarding the security of facilities and safety of our staff and 
recommenced operation shortly thereafter. The directors believe this is an isolated incident and that we and operations 
continue to enjoy good local relations with all the parties to the dispute.  
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Remuneration Report (audited) 
 
Directors’ and Senior Executives’ Remuneration 
 
The Board is responsible for determining and reviewing remuneration arrangements for the Managing Director.  The 
Managing Director is responsible for determining and reviewing remuneration arrangements for the Executive 
Directors, Non-Executive Directors and Senior Executives.   
 
For the period covered in this Annual Report, the Company’s major shareholder, Energy World International Limited 
(“EWI”), has provided assistance to the Company in the form of direct executive and management assistance when and 
as required.   
 
Although EWC’s economic position permits the Company to compensate directors for such services, for the period 
covered in this Annual Report, no obligations have been entered into or contracted between EWC and its Executive or 
Non-Executive Directors.  At the annual general meeting of shareholders held on 24 October 2008, the shareholders 
agreed the maximum annual aggregate remuneration that the Directors are entitled to be paid for their ordinary services 
as Directors out of the funds of the Company be fixed at A$200,000 for Non-Executive Directors and A$800,000 for 
Executive Directors.   
 
Employee Option Plan 
 
We are developing an Employee Option Plan, pursuant to which selected participants may be granted options to 
subscribe for Shares as incentives or rewards for their service rendered to our Group. Our directors believe that the 
implementation of such an Employee Option Plan will enable our Group to continue to recruit and retain high calibre 
executives and employees. If the terms of the Employee Option Plan require approval of shareholders they will be 
submitted to shareholders for consideration.   
 
Insurance 
 
Consistent with industry practice, we have the following insurance policies arranged by Aon Risk Services Australia 
Limited: commercial insurance, workers compensation insurance, fleet and haulage vehicle insurance, public and 
products liability insurance, domestic insurance, and directors’ and officers’ insurance. 
 
Consistent with industry practice, EEES and PTES have the following insurance policies arranged by AON Insurance 
Group: well control and business interruption insurance, property damage/machinery breakdown/business interruption 
insurance, earthquake insurance, comprehensive general liability insurance, terrorism insurance, directors’ and officers’ 
insurance, marine cargo insurance. 
 
The Company's insurers have prohibited disclosure of the amount of the premium payable and the level of 
indemnification under the insurance contracts. 
 
Environment, Infrastructure Impact and Safety Matters 
 
Overview  
 
Our Company places great emphasis on safety and environmental protection and has a strong track record of 
environmental, health and safety compliance. Our Company is committed to ensuring that its operations meet applicable 
legal requirements and, where higher, strives to meet international industry standards. 
 
Hand in hand with the environmental impact assessment comes the infrastructure impact statement, setting out the 
required and voluntary site improvements including roads, housing, electricity and water supply. The infrastructure 
improvements are implemented in close relation to the local communities and community leaders. 
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Our Company has extensive operating procedures designed to ensure the safety of its workers, the assets of the 
Company, the public and the environment. Our Company provides its employees with comprehensive training in safety 
and environmental related matters. Our Company only contracts construction and operations to companies that are able 
to demonstrate that their procedures meet applicable standards. We believe that the Company´s safety record has met or 
exceeded international standards over the past decade. 
 
Environmental 
 
Our Company´s operations are subject to potential environmental risk; typically relating to pollution of the natural 
environment as a result of waste treatment, emissions and disposals. 
  
Our Group strives to minimise adverse environmental effects through the preparation of environmental management 
and environmental monitoring plans. Since 2003, we have employed the Indonesian Ministry of Environment´s 
Programme for Pollution Control Evaluation and Rating System (“PROPER”) used to rank the environmental 
management status of Indonesian companies. The Sengkang Power Plant currently holds a “green” PROPER ranking, 
indicating that the operations of the plant comply with regulatory requirements and that we have taken concrete steps to 
go beyond such compliance. The Sengkang Gas Field currently holds a ‘blue´ PROPER ranking, indicating that the 
operations of the Sengkang Gas Field comply with all environmental and social requirements, including all numerical 
standards, nominated in our environmental monitoring and management plans. 
  
The Sengkang LNG Project is designed and will be constructed to enable its operations to fully comply with all 
applicable local environmental standards and with reference to the International Finance Corporation´s (IFC) 
Performance Standards and Environmental, Health and Safety (EHS) Guidelines. We similarly intend for the design and 
construction of all our future projects to be benchmarked against international environmental standards. 
 
We believe that our Company is in compliance with current applicable environmental laws and regulations in all 
material respects and that continued compliance with existing requirements will not have a material adverse impact on 
our Company. 
 
Health and Safety 
 
Our Company places a high priority on the health and safety of its workforce and the community and it is committed to 
applying the highest applicable standards. Our Company is subject to Indonesian and Australian national and local laws 
and regulations on such matters as occupational health and safety, discrimination and workplace relations, which set out 
minimum terms and conditions of employment. 
 
Our Company recognises the particular risks associated with the power generation and gas industries and continually 
strives to improve its handling of these risks. PTES and EEES are responsible for environmental, health and safety 
matters at the Sengkang Power Plant and Sengkang Gas Plant respectively, and each has policies, procedures and 
personnel in place to manage this process. Alstom Indonesia, as operator of the Sengkang Power Plant, is also required 
to implement specific safety and occupational health procedures in compliance with PTES´ policies and procedures.  
 
CEP is responsible for environmental, health and safety matters at the Alice Springs Power Plant, and has policies, 
procedures and personnel in place to manage this process.  
 
Our Company had no material breach of any applicable health and safety laws or regulations during the past three years. 
Management believes that the Company´s operations are in compliance with relevant health and safety regulations and 
there have not been any material non-fatal injuries or fatal accidents during the past three years. 
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Community Relations 
 
Our Company seeks to contribute to the economic and social welfare of local communities through a number of 
community development projects and by having regard to community interests when developing and operating its 
projects. 
 
As part of its community development initiative, PTES has funded the construction and equipping of a number of local 
health clinics (posyandu), and has committed to establish a further five posyandu each year. These facilities provide 
mothers and children with healthcare. The posyandu are supported as required by a team of nurses and paramedics 
employed by PTES.  
 
PTES has constructed and equipped a library for the community around the Sengkang Power Plant and funds a student 
scholarship programme focused on developing the skills required to work at the Sengkang Power Plant. 
 
No resettlement was required for the development of the Company´s power or gas operations in Indonesia or Australia, 
in line with its policy of using unsettled and non-productive land wherever possible. The Company also has a policy of 
sourcing equipment, supplies and services locally where possible and constitutes the main employer in the South 
Sulawesi region. 
 
PTES and EEES consider that they maintain good relations with the local community. For over 10 years PTES has held 
monthly forums with representatives of the local police, military and community heads to discuss the general operations 
of the Company and its future plans. 
 
Legal Proceedings 
 
None of the members of the Company is a party to any legal or administrative proceedings, and no proceedings are 
known by any member of the Company to be contemplated by government authorities or third parties, which, if 
adversely determined, would materially and adversely affect our Company.  
 
Significant Changes in the State of Affairs 
 
In the opinion of the Directors, there were no significant changes in the state of affairs of the consolidated entity that 
occurred during the financial year under review. 
 
Events Subsequent to Balance Date 
 
On 8 August 2010 Energy World Corporation announced that its American Depository Receipts have obtained 
quotation on the OTCQX International exchange in the United States. No other subsequent events with potential impact 
in 30 June 2010 financial statements occurred post the balance sheet date. 
 
Likely Developments 
 
Further information about likely development in the operations of the consolidated entity has been included in the report 
as future opportunities. 
 
Dividends 
 
No dividend was declared or paid during the year.  No final dividend is payable for the year ended 30 June 2010 (2009: 
Nil).  
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Directors’ Interests 
 
The relevant interest of each Director in the shares, debentures, interests in registration schemes and rights or options 
over such instruments issued by the companies within the consolidated entity and other related body corporate, as 
notified by the Directors to the Australian Securities Exchange in accordance with S205G(1) of the Corporations Act 
2001 as at the date of this report is as follows: 
 

 
Name of Directors 

Energy World Corporation Ltd 
ordinary shares 

Mr S.W.G. Elliott  724,740,934 
Mr I. W. Jordan  319,700 
Mr B. Allen  - 
Dr B.D. Littlechild  - 
Mr M.P. O’Neill  250,000 
Mr D. Faridz  - 
Mr L.J. Charles  - 

 
Indemnification and insurance of directors and officers 

 
The company has agreed to indemnify all the directors and executive officers against liabilities to another person (other 
than the Company or consolidated entity) for which they may be held personally liable, provided that the liability does 
not arise out of conduct involving a lack of good faith. 
 
The Directors have not included details of the nature of the liabilities covered or the amount of the premium paid as 
such disclosure is prohibited under the terms of the contract. 
 
Non-Audit Services 
 
During the year, Ernst & Young Australia provided both tax and advisory services to the consolidated group.  Refer to 
note 8. 
 
Auditors’ Independence Declaration  
 
The auditor’s independence declaration is set out on the following page and forms part of the Director’s Report for the 
financial year ended 30 June 2010. 
 
Rounding 
 
The Company is of a kind referred to in ASIC class order 98/100 dated 10 July 1998 and in accordance with that class 
order, amounts in the financial report and Directors’ report have been rounded to the nearest thousand dollars, unless 
otherwise stated.  
 
Signed in accordance with a resolution of the Directors: 
 

 
Stewart William George Elliott 
Chairman/Managing Director 
 
Dated at Sydney, 10 September 2010
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Energy World Corporation Limited and Its Controlled Entities 
Consolidated Statement of Comprehensive Income 
For The Year Ended 30 June 2010 
 
   

 Notes 2010 2009 
  US$000 US$000 
    

Sales Revenue 3 93,461 95,141 
Cost of Sales  (43,394) (41,969) 

Gross profit  50,067 53,172 
    
Other income  36 662 
    
Reversal of impairment of property plant and equipment 20 3,292 - 
Depreciation and amortisation expenses  5(a) (19,950) (17,050) 
Other expenses 5(b) (8,651) (11,836) 
Results from operating activities  24,794 24,948 
    
Financial income 6 4,063 7,545 
Financing expenses 7 (7,595) (11,641) 
Net financing expenses  (3,532) (4,096) 
    
Foreign currency exchange gain/(loss)  6,774 (23,929) 
Profit/(loss) before related income tax expense  28,036 (3,077) 
Income tax expense 9 (7,667) (5,489) 
Net profit/(loss) for the period  20,369 (8,566) 

Other comprehensive income     
Cash flow hedges gain taken to equity  803 26 
Foreign currency translation  2,497 (5,277) 
Other comprehensive income/(loss) for the period, net of tax  3,300 (5,251) 
Total comprehensive income/(loss) for the period  23,669 (13,817) 

Profit/(loss) for the period is attributable to:    
Non-controlling interest  278 546 
Owners of the parent  20,091 (9,112) 
  20,369 (8,566) 

Total comprehensive income/(loss) for the period is attributable to:    
Non-controlling interest  278 546 
Owners of the parent  23,391 (14,363) 
  23,669 (13,817) 
    

  
2010 
Cents 

2009 
Cents 

Basic earnings / (loss) per share attributable to ordinary equity holders 10 1.29 (0.58) 
Diluted earnings / (loss) per share attributable to ordinary equity holders 10 1.29 (0.58) 
 
 
The statement of comprehensive income is to be read in conjunction with the notes to the financial statements. 
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Energy World Corporation Limited and Its Controlled Entities 
Consolidated Statement of Financial Position 
As At 30 June 2010 
 
   

 Notes 2010 2009 
  US$000 US$000 

Current Assets    
Cash assets  28(b) 58,696 64,094 
Cash held in reserve accounts  11   37,012 37,095 
Trade & other receivables  12(a) 26,930 9,840 
Inventories  13 4,049 2,928 
Prepayment   2,374 2,027 
Total Current Assets  129,061 115,984 

     
Non-Current Assets    
Cash held in reserve accounts  11 140,756 142,867 
Oil and gas assets  18 69,933 63,775 
Exploration and evaluation expenditure  19 51,700 48,981 
Property, plant and equipment  20 376,626 359,649 
Total Non-Current Assets  639,015 615,272 
Total Assets  768,076 731,256 

     
Current Liabilities    
Trade and other payables  21 26,140 21,000 
Interest-bearing borrowings  22 72,608 18,050 
Derivative liabilities   2,455 3,677 
Provisions  23 140 130 
Total Current Liabilities  101,343 42,857 

     
Non-Current Liabilities    
Interest-bearing borrowings  22 184,746 231,979 
Deferred tax liabilities   9 60,719 58,929 
Provisions  23 4,496 4,388 
Total Non-Current Liabilities  249,961 295,296 
Total Liabilities  351,304 338,153 
Net Assets  416,772 393,103 
    
Equity    
Issued capital  24 376,534 376,534 
Asset revaluation reserve   19,211 19,211 
Cash flow hedge reserve   (229) (1,032) 
Foreign currency translation reserve   (2,594) (5,091) 
Accumulated profits / (losses)   16,811 (3,280) 
 
Shareholders’ equity attributable to members of Energy World 
Corporation Limited   409,733 386,342 
Non-controlling interest   7,039 6,761 
Total Equity   416,772 393,103 
 
 
The statement of financial position is to be read in conjunction with the notes to the financial statements. 
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 Energy World Corporation Limited and Its Controlled Entities 
Consolidated Statements of Changes in Equity 
For The Year Ended 30 June 2010 

     

 
  

 
 

Issued  
capital 

US$’000 

 
 

Asset  
revaluation 

reserve 
US$’000 

Cash flow 
hedge  

reserve 
US$’000 

 
Foreign 
currency 

translation 
reserve 
US$’000 

Accumulated 
profits /  
(losses) 

US$’000 

 
 
 

Owners of  
the Parent  
US$’000 

 
 

Non - 
Controlling 

Interest 
US$’000 

Total 
Equity 

US$’000 
          
 Balance at 1 July 2009 376,534   19,211   (1,032)     (5,091)     (3,280)   386,342       6,761 393,103 
 Profit for the period - - - -   20,091    20,091          278   20,369 

 Other comprehensive income - -     803     2,497 - 3,300     -     3,300 
 Total comprehensive income for the period - -     803     2,497   20,091    23,391          278   23,669 
 Balance at 30 June 2010 376,534   19,211     (229)    (2,594)   16,811  409,733       7,039 416,772 
          
 Balance at 1 July 2008 376,534   19,211  (1,058)       186     5,832  400,705       6,215   406,920 
 Profit / (loss) for the period   -   -         -           -    (9,112)      (9,112)         546     (8,566) 
 Other comprehensive income   -   -       26    (5,277)          -      (5,251)             -     (5,251) 
 Total comprehensive income for the period  -   -       26    (5,277)   (9,112)    (14,363)         546   (13,817) 
 Balance at 30 June 2009 376,534   19,211  (1,032)    (5,091)   (3,280)   386,342       6,761  393,103 

 
 
 The statement of changes in equity is to be read in conjunction with the notes to the financial statements. 
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Energy World Corporation Limited and Its Controlled Entities 
Consolidated Statement of Cash Flows 
For The Year Ended 30 June 2010 
 
   

 Notes 2010 2009 
  US$000 US$000 

Cash Flows From Operating Activities    
Receipts from customers (GST inclusive)   84,699 98,646 
Payments to suppliers and employees (GST inclusive)   (61,567) (58,362) 
Income tax paid   (9,425) (6,060) 
Insurance proceeds   8,500 662 
Interest received   3,911 7,515 
Net Cash Flows From Operating Activities  28(a) 26,118 42,401 
    
Cash Flows From Investing Activities    
Payments for property, plant and equipment   (14,835) (117,461) 
Payments for exploration and evaluation   (4,087) (2,973) 
Payments for oil and gas assets   (11,551) - 
Interest paid   (9,485) (8,152) 
Net Cash Flows Used in Investing Activities   (39,958) (128,586) 
    
Cash Flows From Financing Activities    
Transfer (to)/from restricted deposit and reserve accounts   2,194 (86,614) 
Borrowing transaction costs   (1,536) (4,493) 
Repayment of borrowings – related parties   (5,359) (6,907) 
Repayment of borrowings – other    (21,383) (65,740) 
Proceeds from borrowings – other    29,275 183,882 
Net Cash Flows From Investing Activities   3,191 20,128 
    
Net Decrease In Cash Held  (10,649) (66,057) 
Cash at the beginning of the year   64,094 159,073 
Net foreign exchange differences   5,251 (28,922) 
Cash at the end of the financial year 28(b) 58,696 64,094 
    
 
The statement of cash flows should be read in conjunction with the notes to the financial statements. 
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1.   Corporate Information 
 
The financial report of Energy World Corporation Limited (the “Company”) for the year ended 30 June 2010 was 
authorised for issue in accordance with a resolution of the directors on 9 September 2010.  Energy World 
Corporation Limited is a company domiciled in Australia and limited by shares, which are publicly traded on the 
Australian and New Zealand Stock Exchanges. 
 
The nature of the operations and principal activities of the Group are described in the directors’ report. 
 
 

2.   Summary of Significant Accounting Policies 
 
(a)  Basis of Preparation 
 
The financial report is a general purpose financial report, which has been prepared in accordance with the 
requirements of the Corporations Act 2001, applicable Accounting Standards and interpretations and other 
authoritative pronouncements of the Australian Accounting Standards Board. 
 
The financial report is presented in United Stated dollars and is prepared on the historical cost basis except for 
derivative financial instruments that have been measured at fair value.  All values are rounded to the nearest 
thousand dollars ($’000) unless otherwise stated under the option available to the company under ASIC Class 
Order 98/0100.  The company is an entity to which the class order applies. 
 
The accounting policies have been applied consistently throughout the consolidated entity for purposes of this 
financial report. 
 
(b)  Basis of Consolidation 
 
The consolidated financial statements comprise the financial statements of Energy World Corporation Limited and 
its controlled entities as at 30 June 2010. 

 
 (i) Subsidiaries 
 
Subsidiaries are entities controlled by the Company.  Control exists when the Company has the power, directly 
or indirectly, to govern the financial and operating policies of an entity so as to obtain benefits from its 
activities.  In assessing control, potential voting rights that presently are exercisable or convertible are taken 
into account. The financial statements of subsidiaries are included in the consolidated financial statements 
from the date that control commences until the date that control ceases. Investments in subsidiaries are carried 
at their cost of acquisition in the Company’s financial statements, less any impairment charges. 
 
A change in the ownership interest of a subsidiary that does not result in a loss of control, is accounted for as 
an equity transaction. 
 
Non-controlling interests are allocated their share of net profit after tax in the statement of comprehensive 
income and are presented within equity in the consolidated statement of financial position, separately from the 
equity of the owners of the parent. 
 
Losses are attributed to the non-controlling interest even if that results in a deficit balance. 
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2.   Summary of Significant Accounting Policies (continued) 
 

(b)  Basis of Consolidation (continued) 
 

(ii) Associates 
 
Associates are those entities in which the consolidated entity has significant influence, but not control, over the 
financial and operating policies.  The consolidated financial statements includes the consolidated entity’s share 
of the total recognised gains and losses of associates on an equity accounted basis, from the date that 
significant influence commences until the date that significant influence ceases. When the consolidated entity’s 
share of losses exceeds its interest in an associate, the consolidated entity’s carrying amount is reduced to nil 
and recognition of further losses is discontinued except to the extent that the consolidated entity has incurred 
legal or constructive obligations or made payments on behalf of an associate.  
 
(iii) Jointly Controlled Entities 
 
In the consolidated financial statements, investments in jointly controlled entities, including partnerships, are 
accounted for using equity accounting principles.  Investments in joint venture entities are carried at the lower 
of the equity accounted amount and recoverable amount 
 
The consolidated entity’s share of the jointly controlled entity’s net profit or loss is recognised in the 
consolidated statement of financial performance from the date joint control commenced until the date joint 
control ceases.  Other movements in reserves are recognised directly in the consolidated reserves. 

 
In the Company’s financial statements, investments in joint venture entities are carried at cost. 
 
(iv) Jointly Controlled Operations and Assets 
 
The interest of the Company and of the consolidated entity in unincorporated joint ventures and jointly 
controlled assets are brought to account by recognising in its financial statements the assets it controls, the 
liabilities that it incurs, the expenses it incurs and its share of income that it earns from the sale of goods or 
services by the joint venture. 

 
(c)  Statement of Compliance 
 
The financial report complies with Australian Accounting Standards and International Financial Reporting 
Standards as issued by the International Accounting Standards Board. 
 
(d)   New Accounting Standards and Interpretations 
 
From 1 July 2009 the Company has adopted the following Standards for annual reporting periods beginning on or 
after 1 January 2009. Adoption of these standards does not have any effect on the financial performance or position 
of the Company except as described below:  
 
AASB 8: Operating Segments 
AASB 8 replaces AASB 114 Segment Reporting upon its effective date. The Consolidated Entity concluded that 
the operating segments determined in accordance with AASB 8 are different to the business segments previously 
identified under AASB 114. AASB 8 disclosures are shown in note 3, including the revised comparative 
information. 
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2.   Summary of Significant Accounting Policies (continued) 
 
(d)   New Accounting Standards and Interpretations (continued) 
 
AASB 101: Presentation of Financial Statements  
The revised Standard separates owner and non-owner changes in equity. The statement of changes in equity 
includes only details of transactions with owners, with non-owner changes in equity presented in a reconciliation of 
each component of equity and included in the new statement of comprehensive income. The statement of 
comprehensive income presents all items of recognised income and expense, either in one single statement, or in 
two linked statements. The Consolidated Entity has elected to present one statement. 
 
AASB 7: Financial Instruments: Disclosures 
The amended Standard requires additional disclosures about fair value measurement and liquidity risk. Fair value 
measurements related to all financial instruments recognised and measured at fair value are to be disclosed by 
source of inputs using a three level fair value hierarchy, by class. In addition, a reconciliation between the 
beginning and ending balance for level 3 fair value measurements is now required, as well as significant transfers 
between levels in the fair value hierarchy. The amendments also clarify the requirements for liquidity risk 
disclosures with respect to derivative transactions and assets used for liquidity management. The fair value 
measurement and liquidity risk disclosures  are presented in note 3.  
 
AASB 123: Borrowing Costs 
The revised AASB 123 requires capitalisation of borrowing costs that are directly attributable to the acquisition, 
construction or production of a qualifying asset. There is no change to the accounting policy of the Group as a 
result of the amended standard. 
 
AASB 127: Consolidated and separate financial statements 
The revised AASB 127 requires that a change in the ownership interest of a subsidiary (without a change in control) 
is to be accounted for as a transaction with owners in their capacity as owners. Therefore such transactions will no 
longer give rise to goodwill, nor will they give rise to a gain or loss in the statement of comprehensive income. 
Furthermore the revised Standard changes the accounting for losses incurred by a partially owned subsidiary as 
well as the loss of control of a subsidiary. The changes in AASB 127 (revised 2008) will affect future acquisitions, 
changes in, and loss of control of, subsidiaries and transactions with non-controlling interests. 
 
Australian accounting standards and interpretations that have recently been issued or amended but are not yet 
effective, have not been adopted by the Group for the reporting period 30 June 2010. These are outlined in the table 
on the next page: 
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2.   Summary of Significant Accounting Policies (continued) 
 
(d)  New Accounting Standards and Interpretations (continued) 

 
Reference Title Summary Application 

date of 
standard* 

Impact on 
Group 

financial 
report 

Application 
date for 
Group* 

AASB 
2009-5 

Further 
Amendments 
to Australian 
Accounting 
Standards 
arising from 
the Annual 
Improvements 
Project 
[AASB 5, 8, 
101, 107, 117, 
118, 136 & 
139] 

The amendment to AASB 136 clarifies 
that the largest unit permitted for 
allocating goodwill acquired in a business 
combination is the operating segment, as 
defined in IFRS 8 before aggregation for 
reporting purposes. 
The main change to AASB 139 clarifies 
that a prepayment option is considered 
closely related to the host contract when 
the exercise price of a prepayment option 
reimburses the lender up to the 
approximate present value of lost interest 
for the remaining term of the host 
contract. 
The other changes clarify the scope 
exemption for business combination 
contracts and provide clarification in 
relation to accounting for cash flow 
hedges. 
 

1 January 
2010 

There are no 
foreseeable 
impact on the 
financial results 
of the Group. 

1 July 2010 

AASB 124 
(Revised) 

Related Party 
Disclosures 
(December 
2009) 

The revised AASB 124 simplifies the 
definition of a related party, clarifying its 
intended meaning and eliminating 
inconsistencies from the definition, 
including: 
(a)  the definition now identifies a 

subsidiary and an associate with the 
same investor as related parties of 
each other; 

(b) entities significantly influenced by 
one person and entities 
significantly influenced by a close 
member of the family of that 
person are no longer related parties 
of each other; and 

(c) the definition now identifies that, 
whenever a person or entity has 
both joint control over a second 
entity and joint control or 
significant influence over a third 
party, the second and third entities 
are related to each other. 

A partial exemption is also provided from 
the disclosure requirements for 
government-related entities.  Entities that 
are related by virtue of being controlled 
by the same government can provide 
reduced related party disclosures.  
 

1 January 
2011 

There are no 
foreseeable 
impacts of the 
revised standard 
on the 
disclosures of 
the Group. 

1 July 2011 
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2.   Summary of Significant Accounting Policies (continued) 
 
(d)  New Accounting Standards and Interpretations (continued) 

 
Reference Title Summary 

 
 

Application 
date of 

standard* 

Impact on 
Group 

financial 
report 

Application 
date for 
Group* 

AASB 
2009-14 

Amendments 
to Australian 
Interpretation 
– 
Prepayments 
of a Minimum 
Funding 
Requirement 

(a) These amendments arise from the 
issuance of Prepayments of a 
Minimum Funding Requirement 
(Amendments to IFRIC 14). The 
requirements of IFRIC 14 meant that 
some entities that were subject to 
minimum funding requirements 
could not treat any surplus in a 
defined benefit pension plan as an 
economic benefit.   

The amendment requires entities to treat 
the benefit of such an early payment as a 
pension asset. Subsequently, the 
remaining surplus in the plan, if any, is 
subject to the same analysis as if no 
prepayment had been made. 
 

1 January 
2011 

The amendment 
is expected to 
have an 
immaterial 
impact on the 
Group’s 
financial 
statements. 

1 July 2011 

AASB 
1053 

Application of 
Tiers of 
Australian 
Accounting 
Standards  

This Standard establishes a differential 
financial reporting framework consisting 
of two Tiers of reporting requirements for 
preparing general purpose financial 
statements: 
(a) Tier 1: Australian Accounting 

Standards; and 

(b) Tier 2: Australian Accounting 
Standards – Reduced Disclosure 
Requirements. 

Tier 2 comprises the recognition, 
measurement and presentation 
requirements of Tier 1 and substantially 
reduced disclosures corresponding to 
those requirements. 
The following entities apply Tier 1 
requirements in preparing general 
purpose financial statements: 
(a) for-profit entities in the private sector 

that have public accountability (as 
defined in this Standard); and 

(b) the Australian Government and State, 
Territory and Local Governments. 

The following entities apply either Tier 2 
or Tier 1 requirements in preparing 
general purpose financial statements: 
(a) for-profit private sector entities that 

do not have public accountability; 

(b) all not-for-profit private sector 
entities; and 

(c) public sector entities other than the 
Australian Government and State, 
Territory and Local Governments. 

 

1 July 2013 The Group 
expects to apply 
Tier 1 
requirements 
when the 
standard 
becomes 
effective. 

1 July 2013 
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2.   Summary of Significant Accounting Policies (continued) 
 
(d)  New Accounting Standards and Interpretations (continued) 

 
Reference Title Summary Application 

date of 
standard* 

Impact on 
Group 

financial 
report 

Application 
date for 
Group* 

AASB 9 Financial 
Instruments 

AASB 9 includes requirements for the 
classification and measurement of 
financial assets resulting from the first 
part of Phase 1 of the IASB’s project to 
replace IAS 39 Financial Instruments: 
Recognition and Measurement (AASB 
139 Financial Instruments: Recognition 
and Measurement).  
These requirements improve and simplify 
the approach for classification and 
measurement of financial assets 
compared with the requirements of 
AASB 139. The main changes from 
AASB 139 are described below.  
(a) Financial assets are classified based 

on (1) the objective of the entity’s 
business model for managing the 
financial assets; (2) the 
characteristics of the contractual 
cash flows. This replaces the 
numerous categories of financial 
assets in AASB 139, each of which 
had its own classification criteria.   

(b)  AASB 9 allows an irrevocable 
election on initial recognition to 
present gains and losses on 
investments in equity instruments 
that are not held for trading in other 
comprehensive income. Dividends 
in respect of these investments that 
are a return on investment can be 
recognised in profit or loss and 
there is no impairment or recycling 
on disposal of the instrument.  

(c) Financial assets can be designated 
and measured at fair value through 
profit or loss at initial recognition if 
doing so eliminates or significantly 
reduces a measurement or 
recognition inconsistency that 
would arise from measuring assets 
or liabilities, or recognising the 
gains and losses on them, on 
different bases. 

 

1 January 
2013 

There are no 
material impacts 
of the new 
standard on the 
disclosures of 
the Group. 

1 July 2013 
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2.   Summary of Significant Accounting Policies (continued) 
 

(e) Property, Plant and Equipment 
 

(i)    Owned Assets 
 
Items of property, plant and equipment are stated at cost less accumulated depreciation (see below) and 
impairment losses (see accounting policy 2(l)).  The cost of self-constructed assets includes the cost of 
materials, direct labour, the initial estimate, where relevant, of the costs of dismantling and removing the items 
and restoring the site on which they are located, and an appropriate proportion of production overheads. 

 
Where significant parts of an item of property, plant and equipment have different useful lives, they are 
accounted for as separate items of property, plant and equipment. 
 
 (ii)    Leased Assets 
 
Leases in terms of which the consolidated entity assumes substantially all the risks and rewards of ownership 
are classified as finance leases.  The owner-occupied property acquired by way of finance lease is stated at an 
amount equal to the lower of its fair value and the present value of the minimum lease payments at inception of 
the lease, less accumulated depreciation (see below) and impairment losses (see accounting policy 2(l)).  The 
property held under finance leases and leased out under operating lease is classified as investment property and 
stated at fair value.  Lease payments are accounted for as described in accounting policy 2(s).  Property held 
under operating leases that would otherwise meet the definition of investment property may be classified as 
investment property. 
       
(iii)   Depreciation 
 
With the exception of freehold land and oil and gas assets, depreciation is charged to the statement of 
comprehensive income on a straight-line basis over the estimated useful lives of each part of an item of 
property, plant and equipment. Land is not depreciated. Oil and gas assets are depreciated on a unit of 
production basis over the life of the economically recoverable reserves. The estimated useful lives in the 
current and comparative periods are as follows: 
 

Buildings                                      14 to 20 years 
 Plant and Equipment                      5 to 20 years 
 
The residual value, the useful life and the depreciation method applied to an asset are reassessed annually. 

 
(f) Oil and Gas Assets 
 
Development expenditure is stated at cost less accumulated depletion and any impairment in value.  Where 
commercial production in an area of interest has commenced, the associated costs together with any forecast future 
expenditure necessary to develop proved and probable reserves are amortised over the estimated economic life of 
the field, on a unit-of-production basis.  Costs are amortised only once production begins. 
 
Oil and gas assets include costs transferred from exploration and evaluation assets once technical feasibility and 
commercial viability of an area of interest are demonstrable. 
 
Changes in factors such as estimates of proved and probable reserves that affect unit-of-production calculations do 
not give rise to prior year financial period adjustments and are dealt with on a prospective basis. 
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2.   Summary of Significant Accounting Policies (continued) 
 
(g) Exploration and Evaluation Expenditure 
 
During the geological and geophysical exploration phase, costs are charged against income as incurred.  Once the 
legal right to explore has been acquired, costs directly associated with an exploration well are capitalised as 
exploration and evaluation intangible assets until the drilling of the well is complete and the results have been 
evaluated.  These costs include employee remuneration, materials and fuel used, rig costs and payments made to 
contractors.  If no reserves are found, the exploration asset is tested for impairment, if extractable hydrocarbons are 
found and, subject to further appraisal activity, which may include the drilling of further wells, is likely to be 
developed commercially; the costs continue to be carried as an intangible asset while sufficient/continued progress 
is made in assessing the commerciality of the hydrocarbons.  

 
All such carried costs are subject to technical, commercial and management review as well as review for 
impairment at least once a year to confirm the continued intent to develop or otherwise extract value from the 
discovery.  When this is no longer the case, the costs are written off.  When proved reserves of hydrocarbons are 
determined and development is sanctioned, the relevant expenditure is transferred to oil and gas properties after 
impairment is assessed and any resulting impairment loss is recognised. 

  
(h)  Investments 
 
The fair value of financial instruments classified as held for trading and available-for-sale represent their quoted bid 
price at the balance sheet date. 
 
Financial instruments classified as held for trading or available-for-sale investments are recognised / derecognised 
by the consolidated entity on the date it commits to purchase / sell the investments.  Securities held-to-maturity are 
recognised / derecognised on the day they are transferred to / by the consolidated entity. 

 
In measuring fair value, revaluation increments on a class of assets basis are recognised in the revaluation reserve 
except that amounts reversing a decrement previously recognised as an expense are recognised as revenues.  
Revaluation decrements are only offset against revaluation increments relating to the same class of asset and any 
excess is recognised as an expense. 
 
(i) Trade and Other Receivables 
 
Trade receivables are on from 28 to 40 days terms. Other receivables range from 30 to 90 days terms.  Receivables 
are recognized initially at fair value, usually based on the transaction cost or face value.  An allowance for 
impairment of receivables is established when there is objective evidence that the consolidated entity will not be 
able to collect all amounts due.  Bad debts are written off as incurred.  
 
(j) Inventories 
 
Inventories are stated at the lower of cost and net realisable value.  Net realisable value is the estimated selling 
price in the ordinary course of business, less the estimated costs of completion and selling expenses.   
 
The cost of other inventories includes expenditure incurred in acquiring the inventories and bringing them to their 
existing location and condition.   
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2.   Summary of Significant Accounting Policies (continued) 
 
(k) Financial Assets 

 
Financial assets within the scope of AASB 39 are classified as either financial assets at fair value through profit or 
loss, loans and receivables, held to maturity investments, or available for sale financial assets, as appropriate.  
When financial assets are recognised initially, they are measured at fair value, plus, in the case of investments not 
at fair value through profit or loss, directly attributable transaction costs. 
 

(i)   Financial Assets at Fair Value through Profit or Loss 
 
Financial assets at fair value through profit or loss includes financial assets held for trading and financial assets 
designated upon initial recognition as at fair value through profit or loss. 
 
(ii)   Loans and Receivables 
 
Loans and receivables are non-derivative financial assets with fixed or determinable payments that are not 
quoted in an active market. After initial measurement loans and receivable are subsequently carried at 
amortised cost using the effective interest method less any allowance for impairment. 
 
(iii)  Fair Value 
 
The fair value of investments that are actively traded in organised financial markets is determined by reference 
to quoted market bid prices at the close of business on the balance sheet date.  For investments where there is 
no active market, fair value is determined using valuation techniques.  Such techniques include using recent 
arm’s length market transactions; reference to the current market value of another instrument, which is 
substantially the same; discounted cash flow analysis or other valuation models.   
 
(iv)  Cash and Cash Equivalents 
 
Cash and cash equivalents comprise cash balances, short term bills and call deposits.  Bank overdrafts that are 
repayable on demand and form an integral part of the consolidated entity’s cash management are included as a 
component of cash and cash equivalents for the purpose of the statement of cash flows. 
 
Reserve cash is cash held in reserve accounts against the project finance which will be accessible to repay the 
bridging facility and letter of credit available in the group. 
 

(l) Impairment  
 
The carrying amounts of the consolidated entity’s assets, other than inventories (see accounting policy 2(j)) and 
deferred tax assets (see accounting policy 2(t)), are reviewed at each balance sheet date to determine whether there 
is any indication of impairment.  If any such indication exists, the asset’s recoverable amount is estimated. For 
intangible assets that are not yet available for use, the recoverable amount is estimated at each balance sheet date. 
 
An impairment loss is recognised whenever the carrying amount of an asset or its cash-generating unit exceeds its 
recoverable amount.  Impairment losses are recognised in the statement of comprehensive income, unless an asset 
has previously been revalued, in which case the impairment loss is recognised as a reversal to the extent of that 
previous revaluation with any excess recognised through profit or loss. 
 
Impairment losses recognised in respect of cash-generating units are allocated first to reduce the carrying amount of 
any goodwill allocated to cash-generating units (group of units) and then, to reduce the carrying amount of the 
other assets in the unit (group of units) on a pro rata basis. 
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2.   Summary of Significant Accounting Policies (continued) 
 
(l) Impairment (continued) 

 
When a decline in the fair value of an available-for-sale financial asset has been recognised directly in equity and 
there is objective evidence that the asset is impaired, the cumulative loss that had been recognised directly in 
equity is recognised in profit or loss even though the financial asset has not been derecognised.  The amount of the 
cumulative loss that is recognised in profit or loss is the difference between the acquisition cost and current fair 
value, less any impairment loss on that financial asset previously recognised in profit or loss. 

 
(i)    Calculation of Recoverable Amount 
 
The recoverable amount of the consolidated entity’s investments in held-to-maturity securities and receivables 
carried at amortised cost is calculated as the present value of estimated future cash flows, discounted at the 
original effective interest rate (i.e. the effective interest rate computed at initial recognition of these financial 
assets).  Receivables with a short duration are not discounted. The recoverable amount of other assets is the 
greater of their fair value less costs to sell and value in use.  In assessing value in use, the estimated future cash 
flows are discounted to their present value using a pre-tax discount rate that reflects current market 
assessments of the time value of money and the risks specific to the asset.  For an asset that does not generate 
largely independent cash inflows, the recoverable amount is determined for the cash-generating unit to which 
the asset belongs. 
 
(ii)    Reversals of Impairment 
 
Impairment losses, other than in respect of goodwill, are reversed when there is an indication that the 
impairment loss may no longer exist and there has been a change in the estimate used to determine the 
recoverable amount. 
 
An impairment loss in respect of goodwill is not reversed. 
 
An impairment loss in respect of a held-to-maturity security or receivable carried at amortised cost is reversed 
if the subsequent increase in recoverable amount can be related objectively to an event occurring after the 
impairment loss was recognised. 
 
An impairment loss is reversed only to the extent that the asset’s carrying amount does not exceed the carrying 
amount that would have been determined, net of depreciation or amortisation, if no impairment loss had been 
recognised. 
 

(m)   Interest-Bearing Borrowings  
 
Interest-bearing loans and borrowings are initially recognised at fair value of consideration received less directly 
attributable transaction costs.  Subsequent to initial recognition, interest-bearing loans and borrowings are stated at 
amortised cost with any difference between cost and redemption value being recognised in the statement of 
comprehensive income over the period of the borrowings on an effective interest basis.  Debentures, bills of 
exchange and notes payable are recognised when issued at the net proceeds received, with the premium or discount 
on issue amortised over the period to maturity.  Interest expense is recognised on an effective yield basis.   

 
(i)   Borrowing costs 

 
Borrowing costs directly attributable to the acquisition, construction or production of a qualifying asset (i.e. an 
asset that necessarily takes a substantial period of time to get ready for its intended use or sale) are capitalised 
as part of the cost of that asset. Borrowing costs consist of interest and other costs that an entity incurs in 
connection with the borrowing of funds.  
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2.   Summary of Significant Accounting Policies (continued) 
 
(n) Financial Liabilities at Fair Value through Profit or Loss 

 
Financial liabilities at fair value through profit or loss includes financial liabilities held for trading and financial 
liabilities designated upon initial recognition as at fair value through profit and loss. 

 
(o) Employee Benefits 

 
(i)   Defined Contribution Superannuation Funds 
 
Obligations for contributions to defined contribution superannuation funds are recognised as an expense in the 
statement of comprehensive income as incurred. 

  
(ii)  Long-Term Service Benefits 
 
The consolidated entity’s net obligation in respect of long-term service benefits, other than defined benefit 
superannuation funds, is the amount of future benefit that employees have earned in return for their service in 
the current and prior periods.  The obligation is calculated using expected future increases in wage and salary 
rates including related on-costs and expected settlement dates, and is discounted using the government bond 
rates at the balance sheet date which have maturity dates approximating to the terms of the consolidated 
entity’s obligations. 
 
 (iii)  Wages, Salaries, Annual Leave, Sick Leave and Non-Monetary Benefits 
 
Liabilities for employee benefits for wages, salaries, annual leave and sick leave that are expected to be settled 
within 12 months of the reporting date, represent present obligations resulting from employees’ services 
provided to reporting date. There are calculated at undiscounted amounts based on remuneration wage and 
salary rates that the consolidated entity expects to pay as at reporting date including related on-costs, such as 
workers compensation insurance and payroll tax. Non-accumulating non-monetary benefits, such as medical 
care, housing, cars and free or subsidised goods and services, are expensed based on the net marginal cost to 
the consolidated entity as the benefits are taken by the employees. 
 
(iv)  Defined Benefit Plan 
 
The cost of providing employee benefit under Indonesian Law is determined using the projected unit credit 
actuarial valuation method.  Actuarial gains and losses are recognised as income or expense when the net 
cumulative unrecognized actuarial gains and losses for each individual plan at the end of the previous reporting 
year exceeded 10% of the defined benefit obligation at that date.  These gains or losses are recognised on a 
straight line basis over the expected average remaining working lives of the employees.    
 
Further, past-service costs arising from the introduction of a defined benefit plan or changes in the benefit 
payable of an existing plan are required to be amortised over the period until the benefits concerned become 
vested. 
 
For expatriate employees, the provision for service entitlements is calculated based on the actual years of 
service, calculated in accordance with the expatriate employees’ employment arrangement and the Company’s 
expatriate personnel policy. 
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2.   Summary of Significant Accounting Policies (continued) 
 
(p)   Provisions 
 

A provision is recognised in the statement of financial position when the consolidated entity has a present legal or 
constructive obligation as a result of a past event, and it is probable that an outflow of economic benefits will be 
required to settle the obligation.  Provisions are determined by discounting the expected future cash flows at a 
pre-tax rate that reflects current market assessments of the time value of money and, where appropriate, the risks 
specific to the liability. 

 
(i)    Site Restoration 

 
In accordance with the consolidated entity’s environmental policy and applicable legal requirements, a 
provision for site restoration is recognised when the disturbance or other activity is incurred. 
 
The provision is the best estimate of the present value of the expenditure required to settle the restoration 
obligation at the reporting date, based on current legal requirements and technology.  Future restoration costs 
are reviewed annually and any changes are reflected in the present value of the restoration provision at the end 
of the reporting period. 
 
The amount of the provision for future restoration costs is capitalised and is depreciated in accordance with the 
policy set out in note (e). The unwinding of the effect of discounting on the provision is recognised as a 
finance cost. The amount of the provision relating to rehabilitation of environmental disturbance caused by on-
going production and extraction activities are recognised in the statement of comprehensive income as 
incurred.  Changes in the liability for the unwinding of the discount are recognised as a finance cost. 

 
(q)   Trade and Other Payables 
 
Trade and other payables are stated at their amortised cost. Trade payables are non-interest bearing and are 
normally settled on 30-day terms. 
 
(r)   Revenue 

 
(i)    Goods Sold and Services Rendered 
 
Revenue from the sale of goods is recognised in the statement of comprehensive income when the significant 
risks and rewards of ownership have been transferred to the buyer.  Revenue from services rendered is 
recognised in the statement of comprehensive income in proportion to the stage of completion of the 
transaction at the end of the reporting period. No revenue is recognised if there are significant uncertainties 
regarding recovery of the consideration due, the costs incurred or to be incurred cannot be measured reliably, 
there is a risk of return of goods or there is continuing management involvement with the goods. 

 
 (ii)  Interest 
 
Interest is recognised as the interest accrues to the net carrying amount of the financial assets. 

 
(s)   Expenses 

 
(i)   Operating Lease Payments 
 
Payments made under operating leases are recognised in the statement of comprehensive income on a straight-
line basis over the term of the lease.  Lease incentives received are recognised in the statement of 
comprehensive income as an integral part of the total lease expense and spread over the lease term. 



Notes To The Financial Statements 
For The Year Ended 30 June 2010 
 

 

Energy World Corporation Limited                            Page 66 

2.   Summary of Significant Accounting Policies (continued) 
 

(s)   Expenses (continued) 
 

(ii)  Finance Lease Payments 
 
Minimum lease payments are apportioned between the finance charge and the reduction of the outstanding 
liability.  The finance charge is allocated to each period during the lease term so as to produce a constant 
periodic rate of interest on the remaining balance of the liability. 

 
(iii)  Net Financing Costs 
 
Net financing costs comprise interest payable on borrowings calculated using the effective interest method, 
dividends on redeemable preference shares, interest receivable on funds invested, dividend income, foreign 
exchange gains and losses, and gains and losses on hedging instruments that are recognised in the statement of 
comprehensive income.   Borrowing costs are expensed as incurred and included in net financing costs where 
it does not relate to a qualifying asset. 
 
Interest income is recognised in the statement of comprehensive income as it accrues, using the effective 
interest method.  Dividend income is recognised in the statement of comprehensive income on the date the 
entity’s right to receive payments is established which in the case of quoted securities is ex-dividend date.  The 
interest expense component of finance lease payments is recognised in the statement of comprehensive income 
using the effective interest method. 
 

(t)  Income Tax 
 
Income tax on the profit or loss for the year comprises current and deferred tax.  Income tax is recognised in the 
statement of comprehensive income except to the extent that it relates to items recognised directly in equity, in 
which case it is recognised in equity. 
 
Current tax is the expected tax payable on the taxable income for the year, using tax rates enacted or substantively 
enacted at the balance sheet date, and any adjustment to tax payable in respect of previous years. 
 
Deferred tax is provided using the balance sheet liability method, providing for temporary differences between the 
carrying amounts of assets and liabilities for financial reporting purposes and the amounts used for taxation 
purposes.  The following temporary differences are not provided for: initial recognition of goodwill, the initial 
recognition of assets or liabilities that affect neither accounting nor taxable profit, and differences relating to 
investments in subsidiaries to the extent that they will probably not reverse in the foreseeable future.  The amount 
of deferred tax provided is based on the expected manner of realisation or settlement of the carrying amount of 
assets and liabilities, using tax rates enacted or substantively enacted at the balance sheet date. 
 
A deferred tax asset is recognised only to the extent that it is probable that future taxable profits will be available 
against which the asset can be utilised.  Deferred tax assets are reduced to the extent that it is no longer probable 
that the related tax benefit will be realised. 
 
Additional income taxes that arise from the distribution of dividends are recognised at the same time as the liability 
to pay the related dividend. 

 
. 



Notes To The Financial Statements 
For The Year Ended 30 June 2010 
 

 

Energy World Corporation Limited                            Page 67 

2.   Summary of Significant Accounting Policies (continued) 
 
(u)  Operating Segments  
 
An operating segment is a component of an entity that engages in business activities from which it may earn 
revenues and incur expenses (including revenues and expenses relating to transactions with other components of 
the same entity), whose operating results are regularly reviewed by the entity's chief operating decision maker to 
make decisions about resources to be allocated to the segment and assess its performance and for which discrete 
financial information is available. This includes start up operations which are yet to earn revenues. 

 
Operating segments have been identified based on the information provided to the chief operating decision makers 
– being the board of directors. 
 
Operating segments that meet the quantitative criteria as prescribed by AASB 8 are reported separately. However, 
an operating segment that does not meet the quantitative criteria is still reported separately where information about 
the segment would be useful to users of the financial statements. Refer to note 3. 
 
(v)   Value-Added and Goods and Services Tax 
 
Revenue, expenses and assets are recognised net of the amount of goods and services tax (GST) and value-added 
tax (VAT), except where the amount of GST and VAT incurred are not recoverable from the taxation authority.  In 
these circumstances, the GST and VAT are recognised as part of the cost of acquisition of the asset or as part of the 
expense. 
 
Receivables and payables are stated with the amount of GST and VAT included.  The net amount of GST and VAT 
recoverable from, or payable to, the taxation authority is included as a current asset or liability in the statement of 
financial position. 
 
Cash flows are included in the statement of cash flows on a gross basis.  The GST and VAT components of cash 
flows arising from investing and financing activities which are recoverable from, or payable to, the taxation 
authority are classified as operating cash flows. 
 
(w)   Significant Accounting Judgements, Estimates and Assumptions 
 
The carrying amounts of certain assets and liabilities are often determined based on management’s judgement 
regarding estimates and assumptions of future events. The reasonableness of estimates and underlying assumptions 
are reviewed on an ongoing basis. Revisions to accounting estimates are recognised in the period in which the 
estimate is revised if the revision affects only that period or in the period of the revision and future periods if the 
revision affects both current and future periods. The key judgements, estimates and assumptions that have a 
significant risk of causing a material adjustment to the carrying amount of certain assets and liabilities within the 
next annual reporting period are: 

 
(i)   Estimates of Reserve Quantities 
 
The estimated quantities of proven and probable hydrocarbon reserves reported by the Group are integral to the 
calculation of depletion and depreciation expense and to assessments of possible impairment of assets. 
Estimated reserve quantities are based upon interpretations of geological and geophysical models and 
assessments of the technical feasibility and commercial viability of producing the reserves. These assessments 
require assumptions to be made regarding future development and production costs, commodity prices, 
exchange rates and fiscal regimes. The estimates of reserves may change from period to period as the 
economic assumptions used to estimate the reserves can change from period to period, and as additional 
geological data is generated during the course of operations. Reserves estimates are prepared in accordance 
with the Group’s policies and procedures for reserves estimation.  
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2.   Summary of Significant Accounting Policies (continued) 
 

(w)   Significant Accounting Judgements, Estimates and Assumptions (continued) 
 
 (ii)  Exploration and Evaluation  
 
The consolidated entity’s policy for exploration and evaluation expenditure is discussed in note 2(g). The 
application of this policy requires management to make certain estimates and assumptions as to future events 
and circumstances, particularly in relation to the assessment of whether economic quantities of reserves have 
been found. Any such estimates and assumptions may change as new information becomes available. If, after 
having capitalised exploration and evaluation expenditure, management concludes that the capitalised 
expenditure is unlikely to be recovered by future exploration or sale, then the relevant capitalised amount will 
be written off to the statement of comprehensive income. 
 
The carrying amount of exploration and evaluation assets is disclosed in Note 22.  

 
(iii)  Provision for Restoration 
 
The consolidated entity’s policy for providing for restoration is discussed in Note 2(p). 

 
 (iv)   Impairment of Oil and Gas Assets 
 
The consolidated entity’s policy for impairment of oil and gas assets is discussed in Note 2(l). 
 
(v)   Carrying values of property, plant and equipment 
 
There are certain estimates and assumptions made by management that support the carrying values of its 
property, plant and equipment at the reporting date, particularly in relation to its LNG project in Indonesia. 
These assessments require assumptions to be made regarding future government approvals to operate its 
planned facilities, the ability to raise sufficient funds to complete the project and the completion of an off-take 
agreement. Any changes in one or more of these judgements may impact the carrying value of these assets. 
The Group’s policy for accounting for property, plant and equipment is discussed in note 2 (e). 
 

(x)   Derivative financial instruments and hedging  
 

The Group uses derivative financial instruments (including interest rate swaps) to hedge its risks associated with 
interest rate fluctuations. Such derivative financial instruments are initially recognised at fair value on the date on 
which a derivative contract is entered into and are subsequently remeasured to fair value.  

 
Derivatives are carried as assets when their fair value is positive and as liabilities when their fair value is negative. 
Any gains or losses arising from changes in the fair value of derivatives, except for those that qualify as cash flow 
hedges, are taken directly to profit or loss for the year. The fair values of interest rate swap contracts are 
determined by reference to market values for similar instruments. 

 
For the purposes of hedge accounting, hedges are classified as: 
• Fair value hedges when they hedge the exposure to changes in the fair value of a recognised asset or 
• Cash flow hedges when they hedge the exposure to variability in cash flows that is attributable either to a 

particular risk associated with a recognised asset or liability or to a forecast transaction 
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2.   Summary of Significant Accounting Policies (continued) 
 

(x)   Derivative financial instruments and hedging (continued) 
 
Hedges that meet the strict criteria for hedge accounting are accounted for as follows: 
  

(i) Fair value hedges 
 
Fair value hedges are hedges of the Group's exposure to changes in the fair value of a recognised asset or 
liability or an un-recognised firm commitment, or an identified portion of such an asset, liability or firm 
commitment that is attributable to a particular risk and could affect profit or loss. For fair value hedges, the 
carrying amount of the hedged item is adjusted for gains and losses attributable to the risk being hedged and 
the derivative is re-measured to fair value. Gains and losses from both are taken to profit or loss. 
 
The Group discontinues fair value hedge accounting if the hedging instrument expires or is sold, terminated or 
exercised, the hedge no longer meets the criteria for hedge accounting or the Group revokes the designation. 
Any adjustment to the carrying amount of a hedged financial instrument for which the effective interest 
method is used is amortised to profit or loss. Amortisation may begin as soon as an adjustment exists and shall 
begin no later than when the hedged item ceases to be adjusted for changes in its fair value attributable to the 
risk being hedged. 
 
(ii) Cash flow hedges 
 
Cash flow hedges are hedges of the Group's exposure to variability in cash flows that is attributable to a 
particular risk associated with a recognised asset or liability that is a firm commitment and that could affect 
profit or loss. The effective portion of the gain or loss on the hedging instrument is recognised directly in 
equity, while the ineffective portion is recognised in profit or loss. 

 
Amounts taken to equity are transferred out of equity and included in the measurement of the hedged 
transaction when the forecast transaction occurs. 

 
If the hedging instrument expires or is sold, terminated or exercised without replacement or rollover, or if its 
designation as a hedge is revoked (due to it being ineffective), amounts previously recognised in equity remain 
in equity until the forecast transaction occurs. 
 

(y)  Foreign currency translation 
 

(i) Functional and presentation currency 
 
Both the functional and presentation currency of Energy World Corporation Limited is United States Dollars 
($). The Australian subsidiaries' functional currency is Australian Dollars which is translated to presentation 
currency (see below). 

 

 (ii) Transactions and balances 
 
Transactions in foreign currencies are initially recorded in the functional currency by applying the exchange 
rates ruling at the date of the transaction. Monetary assets and liabilities denominated in foreign currencies are 
retranslated at the rate of exchange ruling at the balance sheet date. Non-monetary items that are measured in 
terms of historical cost in a foreign currency are translated using the exchange rate as at the date of the initial 
transaction. Non-monetary items measured at fair value in a foreign currency are translated using the exchange 
rates at the date when the fair value was determined. 
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2.   Summary of Significant Accounting Policies (continued) 
 
(y)  Foreign currency translation (continued) 

 
 (iii) Translation of Group Companies functional currency to presentation currency 
 
The results of the Australian subsidiaries are translated into United States Dollars as at the date of each 
transaction. Assets and liabilities are translated at exchange rates prevailing at balance date. Exchange 
variations resulting from the translation are recognised in the foreign currency translation reserve in equity. 
 
 

3.   Operating Segments 
 

(a)    Identification of reportable segments  
 

The Group has identified its operating segments based on the internal reports that are reviewed and used by the 
board of directors (the chief operating decision makers) in assessing performance and in determining the 
allocation of resources. 

 
The operating segments are identified by management based on geographic locations in which the Group 
operates, and the nature of the activity performed by the Group. The Group has determined that it has five 
operating segments, being: oil and gas in Australia, power in Australia, oil and gas in Indonesia, power in 
Indonesia and LNG in Indonesia. 

 
Discrete financial information about each of these operating businesses is reported to the executive management 
team on at least a monthly basis. 

 
The reportable segments are based on aggregated operating segments determined by the similarity of the products 
produced and sold and/or the future products to be produced, as these are the sources of the Group’s major risks 
and have the most effect on the rates of return. 

 
(b) Accounting policies and inter-segment transactions  

 
The accounting policies used by the Group in reporting segments internally are the same as those contained in this 
half year financial report and the annual financial report for the year ended 30 June 2010. 

 
(c)   Major customers 

 
The Group supplies Indonesian Government agencies that combined account for 94% of external revenue (2009: 
95%) The next most significant customer accounts for 5% (2009: 4%). 

 
Revenue from external customers by geographic locations is detailed below. Revenue is attributed to geographic 
location based on the location of the customers. The Company does not have external revenues from external 
customers that are attributable to any foreign country other than as shown. 
 
 2010 2009 
 US$’000 US$’000 
   
Indonesia 87,682          90,294 
Australia 5,779            4,847 
Total revenue 93,461          95,141 
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3.  Operating Segments (continued) 
 

(d) Segment revenue, expenses, assets and liabilities 

Inter-segment pricing is determined on an arm’s length basis. 

Segment results include items directly attributable to a segment as well as those that can be allocated on a reasonable basis.  Unallocated items comprise mainly income-earning 
assets, interest-bearing loans, borrowings and expenses, and corporate assets and expenses. 

 
 Australia Indonesia 

 Total 

   Oil & Gas Power  Oil & Gas        Power LNG project  
development  

 2010 2009 2010 2009 2010 2009 2010 2009 2010 2009 2010 2009 
 US$'000 US$'000 US$'000 US$'000 US$'000 US$'000 US$'000 US$'000 US$'000 US$'000 US$'000 US$'000 
             
Sales revenue           785           976 4,994 3,872 22,798 21,510 64,884 68,783 - - 93,461 95,141 
             
Result             
Segment result      178             88 711 1,197 16,204 16,355        23,136 27,661 - - 40,229 45,301 
Depreciation and amortisation (523) (442) (708) (583) (5,478) (3,979) (13,198)     (12,026)                 -                 - (19,907) (17,030) 
Net financing cost           (3,532) (4,096) 
Reversal of impairment property, plant 
and equipment                   3,292                 - 3,292 - 

Unallocated corporate result           1,180  (3,323) 
Foreign currency exchange gain/(loss)           6,774 (23,929) 
Profit/(loss) before income tax           28,036 (3,077) 
Income tax expense           (7,667) (5,489) 
Non-controlling interest           (278) (546) 
Net profit/(loss)           20,091 (9,112) 
             
Other Comprehensive income/(loss)           3,330 (5,251) 
             
Segment assets 34,540 29,364 6,607 6,420 129,399 114,180 185,208 197,303 208,192 184,264 563,946 531,531 
Segment liabilities (2,908) (1,604) (384) (306) (20,779) (9,462) (58,800) (79,056) (6,778) (1,499) (89,649) (91,927) 
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3.  Operating Segments (continued) 
 

(e) Segment assets and liabilities reconciliation to the statement of financial position 
 

Segment results include items directly attributable to a segment as well as those that can be allocated on a 
reasonable basis.  Unallocated items comprise mainly income-earning assets and revenue, interest-bearing loans, 
borrowings and expenses, and corporate assets and expenses. 

 
Reconciliation of segment operating assets to total assets: 

 2010 2009 
 US$’000 US$’000 
   
Segment operating assets          563,946         531,531 
Cash - Corporate            40,029           42,617 
Cash held in reserve accounts          160,641         155,855 
Prepayments and other              3,460             1,253 
Total assets per the statement of financial position          768,076        731,256 

 
Reconciliation of segment operating liabilities to total liabilities: 

 2010 2009 
 US$’000 US$’000 
   
Segment operating liabilities   89,649   91,927 
Deferred tax liabilities   60,719   58,929 
Interest-bearing borrowings 200,889 187,169 
Provisions and other        47      128 
Total liabilities per the statement of financial position 351,304 338,153 

 
 
4.  Parent Entity Information  
 

Information relating to Energy World Corporation Ltd: 
 2010 2009 
 US$’000 US$’000 
   
Current assets     61,630   56,496 
Total assets   560,722 526,948 
   
Current liabilities  (103,532) (113,009) 
Total liabilities  (319,005) (226,742) 
   
Issued capital  376,534 376,534 
Foreign currency translation reserve     (4,429)     (4,429) 
Total shareholders’ equity 241,717 228,498 
   
Net profit and total comprehensive income   13,219   24,548 
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4.   Parent Entity Information (continued) 
 
Contingent Liabilities 
 
(a)   Intra-Group Loans 
 
The Company has given an undertaking that we will not require loans that we have made to wholly owned and 
controlled entities to be repaid within a 12-month period from 31 August 2010 if doing so would place those 
entities in a position where they could not pay their debts as and when they fall due.  
 
(b)  Deed of Cross Guarantee 
 
The Company and certain wholly owned or controlled entities have entered into a deed of cross guarantee, pursuant 
to which we and such entities agree to pay any deficiency relating to debts in the event of the winding up of any of 
the entities that are party to the deed. Apart from the Company, the parties to the cross guarantee are AGL, CEA, 
CEP, Central Queensland Power Pty Ltd and Energy Equity West Kimberly Pty Ltd. 

 
No provision has been made for any of these matters, as our Directors believe, in each case, either that it is not 
probable that a future sacrifice of economic benefit will be required or that the amount of such a future sacrifice is 
not susceptible of being reliably measured. 
 
Future Financial Capital Commitments  
 
Sengkang LNG Project 
 
In 2007, the Company entered into an equipment supply agreement with Chart for modular LNG trains. During the 
financial year ending 30 June 2011, the Company is contracted to spend US$20 million, include commitments with 
Siemens, representing the balance remaining under the existing purchase agreements, for the principal components 
of the Sengkang LNG Facility, which were ordered in 2007. 
 
During the financial year ending 30 June 2011, the Company is also projected to spend US$42.2 million 
representing the balance of funds required to enable first commercial production of LNG from the Sengkang LNG 
plant. 

 
         

 2010 2009 
 US$’000 US$’000 

5.   Expenses  
 

(a) Depreciation and amortization expenses    

Building        (140)      (127) 
Plant and equipment  (15,784) (13,704) 
Amortisation of oil and gas assets   (4,026)   (3,219) 

 (19,950) (17,050) 

(b) Other expenses    
Cash flow hedge ineffectiveness      (570)   (1,946) 
Insurance      (2,419)   (1,540) 
Consulting fees       (977)   (2,565) 
Other   (4,685)   (5,785) 
   (8,651) (11,836) 
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 2010 2009 
 US$’000 US$’000 

6.   Financial Income  
 

Interest income – cash at bank & term deposits 4,063 7,545 
 4,063 7,545 

 
 
7.   Financing Expenses  
 

Financing expenses – others    (6,582) (10,648) 
Borrowing costs amortised   (1,013)       (993) 

   (7,595) (11,641) 
  

 
8.   Auditors’ Remuneration 

 2010 2009 
 US$ US$ 

Audit Services   
Auditors of the Company – Audit and review of financial reports :   
Ernst & Young Australia 149,757 138,711 
Ernst & Young Indonesia   90,655   84,200 
Tax and Advisory Services   
Ernst & Young Australia 150,026 292,443 
Ernst & Young Hong Kong - 180,708 
Ernst & Young Indonesia - 38,586 

 390,438 734,648 
 
 

 2010 2009 
 US$’000 US$’000 

 
9.   Income Tax  
 

A reconciliation between tax expense and the product of accounting profit before income tax multiplied by the 
Group’s applicable income tax rate is as follows: 

 
Accounting profit / (loss) before tax: 28,036   (3,077) 
At the Parent Entity’s statutory income tax rate of 30% (2009: 30%)    8,411      (923) 
Decrease/(increase) in tax expense due to:   

Non-deductible expenses/non-assessable income   2,534 (10,657) 
Deferred tax expense/(income)   (1,790)   4,245 

Income tax expense reported in the statement of comprehensive income   7,667   5,489 
 

The major components of income tax expense are: 
 

Current income tax charge 5,877 9,734 
Deferred tax expense/(income) 1,790 (4,245) 
Income tax expense reported in the statement of comprehensive income 7,667 5,489 
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9.   Income Tax (continued)  
 

Deferred income tax at 30 June relates to the following: 
 

 Balance Sheet Income Statement 
 2010 2009 2010 2009 
 US$’000 US$’000 US$’000 US$’000 
     
Deferred tax liabilities     
Exploration and evaluation 
expenditure (13,990) (16,172) 2,182 2,093 
Property, plant and equipment (48,550) (43,870) (4,680) 2,546 
     
Deferred tax assets     
Provisions     1,821    1,113    708     99 
Net deferred tax liability (60,719) (58,929)   
Deferred tax income/(expense)   (1,790) 4,245 
Tax losses not brought to account 1,566 9,081   
 
Tax losses do not expire under current tax legislation.  These losses have not been recognised in respect of these 
items because it is not probable that future taxable profit will be available against which the consolidated entity 
can utilise the benefits. 

 
 
10. Earnings per Share (EPS) 
 

The calculation of basic earnings per share for the year ended 30 June 2010 was based on the profit attributable to 
ordinary shareholders of $20,091,000 (2009: $9,112,000 loss) and a weighted average number of ordinary shares 
outstanding during the year ended 30 June 2010 of 1,561,166,672 (2009:1,561,166,672). 
 
 2010 2009 
 US$’000 US$’000 

 
Earnings reconciliation   
Profit/(loss) attributable to ordinary shareholders, basic and diluted 
earnings 

20,091 (9,112) 

   
 2010 2009 
 Number Number 
Weighted average number of shares used as a denominator   
Number for basic and diluted earnings per share 1,561,166,672 1,561,166,672 
   
 2010 2009 
 Cent Cent 
Profit/(loss) per share basic and diluted – cent per share 1.29 (0.58) 
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 2010 2009 
 US$’000 US$’000 

 
11. Cash Held in Reserve Accounts 
 

Cash held in reserve accounts - current    37,012  37,095 
Cash held in reserve accounts – non-current 140,756 142,867 

 177,768 179,962 
 

In 2010, cash of $177,768,264 is held in reserve accounts for the following purpose. 
 
• $74,704,831 as security for payment to Standard Chartered Bank of the corporate facility 
• $64,438,583 as security for payment to HSBC (Australia) of the corporate facility 
• $1,612,734 as security for payment to Mizuho Bank of the corporate facility 
• $19,885,197 as security for a letter of credit issued by Standard Chartered Bank for a gas turbine generator 

contracted by the Company to Siemens 
• $12,277,324 as Debt Service Accrual and Debt Service Reserve Sub Accounts for PT Energi Sengkang 
• $4,644,481 as Debt Service Accrual and Debt Service Reserve Sub Accounts for Energy Equity Epic 

(Sengkang) Pty Ltd. 
• $205,114 as Security Deposits made by Australian Gasfields Limited ($108,800); Central Energy Australia Pty 

Ltd. ($57,342) and Energy Equity Epic (Sengkang) Pty Ltd ($38,972)  
 
In 2009, cash of $179,962,120 was held in reserve accounts for the following purpose. 
 
• $74,704,831 as security for payment to Standard Chartered Bank of the corporate facility 
• $60,493,060 as security for payment to HSBC (Australia) of the corporate facility 
• $1,612,570 as security for payment to Mizuho Bank of the corporate facility 
• $19,044,637 as security for a letter of credit issued by Standard Chartered Bank for a gas turbine generator 

contracted by the Company to Siemens 
• $22,407,320 as Debt Service Accrual and Debt Service Reserve Sub Accounts for PT Energi Sengkang 
• $1,510,364 as Debt Service Accrual and Debt Service Reserve Sub Accounts for Energy Equity Epic 

(Sengkang) Pty Ltd. 
• $189,338 as Security Deposits made by Australian Gasfields Limited ($102,210); Central Energy Australia Pty 

Ltd. ($52,698) and Energy Equity Epic (Sengkang) Pty Ltd. ($34,430)  
 
 
12. Trade and Other Receivables 

       
 2010 2009 
 US$’000 US$’000 
(a) Current   

Trade receivables 18,514     9,428 
Sundry debtors   8,566        562 
 27,080     9,990 
Less : Allowance for doubtful debts (i)      (150)       (150) 
 26,930      9,840 

 
Trade receivables are 28-40 days and are interest-bearing if not paid within this term.  Other receivable are not 
interest bearing.  Allowance for doubtful debts for the year ended 30 June 2010 all relate to Sundry debtors for the 
Consolidated Group.  
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12. Trade and Other Receivables (continued) 
 

 2010 2009 
 US$’000 US$’000 
   
(i) Allowance for doubtful debts   
     Opening balance     150       150 
     Add:  Current year’s charge         -           - 
     Closing balance     150       150 

 
At 30 June, the aging analysis of trade receivables is as follows: 

 
 
 
 
 

 
 
 

 
Total 

 
US$’000 

0-30 
days 

 
US$’000 

31-60 
days 

 
US$’000 

61-90 
days 

PDNI* 
US$’000 

61-90 
days 
CI** 

US$’000 

+91 
days 

PDNI* 
US$’000 

+91 
days 
CI** 

US$’000 
2010 Consolidated 18,514 10,315 7,789 - - 410 - 

2009 Consolidated   9,428   8,220    924 284 - - - 
 

*     Past due not impaired (‘PDNI’)                              
**  Considered impaired (‘CI’) 
 
Due to the short term nature of these receivables, their carrying value is assumed to approximate their fair value. 
 
The maximum exposure to credit risk is the fair value of receivables.  Collateral is not held as security, nor is it 
the consolidated entity’s policy to transfer (on-sell) receivables to special purpose entities. 
 
Detail regarding liquidity risk is disclosed in note 32. 
 

 
 2010 2009 
 US$’000 US$’000 

 
13. Inventories 
 

Current   
Consumables 4,009        2,890 
Finished goods      40            38 

 4,049       2,928 
 
 
14. Prepayment 
 

Current   
Prepayment 2,374        2,027 

 2,374        2,027 
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15. Consolidated Entities 
 

 Ownership Interest 
 2010 2009 
Parent Entity   
Energy World Corporation Ltd   
   
Subsidiaries   
 Active Subsidiaries   
  Australian Gasfields Limited ^ x 100 100 
  Central Energy Australia Pty Ltd ^ * x 100 100 
  Central Energy Power Pty Ltd ^ x 100 100 
  Energy Equity Epic (Sengkang) Pty Ltd * x 100 100 
  Energy Equity Holdings Pty Ltd * x 100 100 
  Energy Equity Technology Pty Ltd x 100 100 
  Energy World Holdings (Cayman) Ltd z 100 100 
  Epic Sulawesi Gas Pty Ltd x 100 100 
  Galtee Limited z 100 100 
  Kerbridge Energy Pty Ltd x 100 100 
  PT. Energi Sengkang (Incorporated in Indonesia)  95 95 
  Sulawesi Energy Pty Ltd * x 100 100 
  Ventures Holdings Pty Ltd x 100 100 
  PT South Sulawesi LNG x 100 100 
     

  
 Ownership Interest 
 2010 2009 
 Non-Active / Dormant Subsidiaries   
  Australian Energy Equity Pty Ltd x 100 100 
  Central Queensland Power Pty Ltd ^ x 100 100 
  Central Western Energy Pty Ltd x 100 100 
  Energy Equity (Biru) Pty Ltd x 100 100 
  Energy Equity (Bone Bay) Pty Ltd * x 100 100 
  Energy Equity (Gajah Besar) Pty Ltd * x 100 100 
  Energy Equity (Talang Babat) Pty Ltd x 100 100 
  Energy Equity (West Kimberley) Pty Ltd ^ x 100 100 
  Energy Equity Asia Petroleum Pty Ltd x 100 100 
  Energy Equity Asia Pty Ltd x 100 100 
  Energy Equity Holdings Ltd * y 100 100 
  Energy Equity India Holdings Pty Ltd x 100 100 
  Energy Equity India Petroleum Pty Ltd x 100 100 
  Energy Equity India Power Pty Ltd x 100 100 
  Energy Equity Lematang Ltd z 100 100 
  Energy Equity Lematang Pty Ltd x 100 100 
  Energy Equity LNG Pty Ltd x 100 100 
  Energy Equity Ltd y 100 100 
  Energy Equity Operations Pty Ltd x 100 100 
  Energy Equity Pty Ltd x 100 100 
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15. Consolidated Entities 
 
        * Entities which carry on business in Indonesia. 

^ Pursuant to ASIC Class Order 98/1418, relief has been granted to these controlled entities of Energy World 
Corporation Ltd from the Corporations Law requirements for preparation, audit and publication of financial 
reports.  As a condition of the Class Order, Energy World Corporation Ltd and the controlled entities subject to 
the Class Order entered into a deed of indemnity on 16 June 1998.   The effect of the deed is that Energy World 
Corporation Ltd has guaranteed to pay any deficiency in the event of winding up of the controlled entity.  The 
controlled entities have also given a similar guarantee in the event Energy World Corporation Ltd is wound up.  
Refer Note 27.  

 
x Incorporated in Australia 
y Incorporated in Mauritius 
z Incorporated in Cayman Islands 

 
 
16.  Investments in Associates 

  
 

  Ownership Interest 

Name Note Reporting 
Date 

2010 
% 

2009 
% 

   
Asian Resources Limited (1) 30 April 42.5 42.5 
Siasin Energy Limited (2) 30 April 40 40 

 

(1) Holding company of Siasin Energy Ltd. 
(2) Developer of the proposed 680MW Vypeen Power Project in Cochin, India. 

 
 
17. Joint Venture Interests 
 

Australian Gasfields Limited (AGL) has a 19.604% interest in PL184, which contains the Thylungra gasfield 
adjacent to ATP-549P. In addition, AGL has a 33.3% interest in PEL 96 and a 2% interest in the Naccowlah Block 
(ATP-259P).   

 
 Ownership Interest 
 2010 2009 
 % % 

ATP-549P (Australia) - Cypress JV 
                  - Solitaire JV 

55.0 
100.0 

55.0 
100.0 

ATP-269P (Australia) 19.604 19.604 
PEL 96 (Australia) 33.3 33.3 
ATP-259P (Australia) 2.0 2.0 
 
During the period, EWC’s joint venture partner in the Solitaire JV, Strike Oil, withdrew from the joint venture by 
way of Deed of Assignment and Assumption. Therefore, the interest in the Solitaire JV is now 100% and no 
longer operates as a Joint Venture. 
 
The principal activity of these joint ventures is the exploration and development of oil and gas prospects.  For the 
financial year ended 30 June 2010, the contribution of the joint venture to the operating profit of the consolidated 
entity was nil (2009: nil). 
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 2010 2009 
 US$’000 US$’000 

 
18. Oil and Gas Assets 
 

Opening balance 63,775 54,530 
Transfers from exploration and evaluation expenditure - 12,464 
Additions 11,636 - 
Amortisation (5,478)   (3,219) 
Closing balance  69,933 63,775 

 
 
19. Exploration and Evaluation Expenditure 
 

Opening balance  48,981   62,310 
Transfers to oil and gas assets -   (12,464) 
Additions    1,166     2,609 
Foreign currency translation    1,553    (3,474) 
Closing balance  51,700 48,981 
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20. Property, plant and equipment 
 

 
Freehold  

land 

Buildings 
on freehold 

land 

Plant 
and 

equipment Total 
 US$’000 US$’000 US$’000 US$’000 

Cost      
Balance at 1 July 2008    857 2,714 303,537 307,108 
Additions 2,275 - 118,453 120,728 
Foreign currency translation        (5)      (52)     (9,703)     (9,760) 
Balance at 30 June 2009 3,127 2,662 412,287 418,076 
     
Balance at 1 July 2009 3,127 2,662 412,287 418,076 
Additions    582 -  26,864   27,446 
(Impairment)/Reversal of impairment - -    3,292     3,292 
Foreign currency translation        2        3    1,751     1,756 
Balance at 30 June 2010 3,711 2,665 444,194 450,570 

Depreciation and impairment losses    

Balance at 1 July 2008 -   (308) (47,035) (47,343) 
Depreciation charge for the year -   (127) (13,704) (13,831) 
Foreign currency translation -     26   2,721   2,747 
Balance at 30 June 2009 -    (409) (58,018) (58,427) 
     
Balance at 1 July 2009 -    (409) (58,018) (58,427) 
Depreciation charge for the year -    (140)  (14,332) (14,472) 
Foreign currency translation -        (1)   (1,044)   (1,045) 
Balance at 30 June 2010 -    (550) (73,394) (73,944) 
     
Carrying amount     
At 1 July 2008    857 2,406 256,502 259,765 
At 30 June 2009 3,127 2,253 354,269 359,649 
At 30 June 2010 3,711 2,115 370,800 376,626 

     
     

 
The borrowing costs capitalised to property, plant and equipment assets during the period amounted to $6.92 
million (2009: $1.76 million).  
 
During the year, the company reversed an impairment recognised in 2004 of $3.3m. This expenditure mainly 
relates to the intellectual property built in relation to the mid scale modular LNG projects. Due to oil and gas 
prices that prevailed at that time and the Company’s difficulty to raise capital, these costs were written down to 
zero in 2004. 
 
The reversal of impairment has been recorded due to more certainty around the Sengkang LNG project, which 
include the following reasons: 
 
- Increased oil and gas prices since 2004; 
- Significant market interest in its Sengkang LNG project; and  
- A heads of agreement signed with Tokyo Gas for a 0.5 mtpa offtake agreement.  

 
 
 
 
 
 

  



Notes To The Financial Statements 
For The Year Ended 30 June 2010 

   

 

Energy World Corporation Limited               Page 82 

 2010 2009 
 US$’000 US$’000 

 
21. Trade and other payables 
 

Current   
Trade Payables 24,186 11,285 
Other creditors and accruals   1,954   9,715 
 26,140 21,000 

 
(a) Trade and other payables are non-interest bearing and are normally settled within 30-day terms.  The net of GST 

payable and GST receivable (or other taxes applicable) is remitted to the taxation authority on a monthly basis. 
(b) Due to the short-term nature of these payables, their carrying value is assumed to approximate their fair value. 
(c) Information regarding interest rate and liquidity risk exposure is set out in note 32. 
 
 
22. Interest-Bearing Liabilities 
 

Current   
Secured bank loan – Sengkang loan (e) 12,608 18,050 
Secured bank loan – Corporate (f) 60,000 - 
 72,608 18,050 

 
Non-current   
Secured bank loan – Corporate (f) 124,321 169,792 
Secured bank loan – Sengkang (e)  43,334   44,275 
Related party loan – EWI (g)  20,425   21,974 
Debt establishment costs   (3,857)     (4,597) 
Other       523       535 
 184,746 231,979 

 
(a) Fair Value 

 
Unless disclosed below, the carrying amount of the Group's current and non-current borrowings approximate their 
fair value. 

 
(b) Interest Rate, Foreign Exchange and Liquidity Risk 

 
Details regarding interest rate, foreign exchange and liquidity risk is disclosed in note 32. 

 
(c) Assets Pledged As Security 

 
All assets of the consolidated entity are pledged as security to the consolidated entities lenders.  The form of 
security is a floating charge over all of the consolidated entity assets.  There are no specific conditions on value of 
assets pledged.  
 

(d)   Default and Breaches 
 
During the current and prior years, there were no defaults or breaches on any of the loans. 
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22.   Interest-Bearing Liabilities (continued) 
 
(e) Sengkang Bank Loan Terms and Conditions 

 
On 27 November 2007, PTES and EEES entered into an Amended and Restated Facility Agreement with Standard 
Chartered Bank and Mizuho Corporate Bank to transfer the existing project finance loans for the 135MW 
Sengkang Independent Power Producer (IPP) and gas field projects and to provide additional project finance for the 
PTES Power Expansion project of US$45 million and EEES Gas Expansion project of US$15 million. The loan 
facilities are to be repaid bi-annually on 22 April and 22 October each year to 22 October 2013.  At that time, there 
is an option to extend the repayment to October 2017 in further semi-annual instalment.  

 
The interest rate margins for the facility vary between 1.375%, 1.75% and 3.25% per annum above the quoted six 
month LIBOR for US dollars up to 22 October 2010.  Different rates are applied to different loan tranches.  After 
22 October 2010, the interest rate margin is 3.25% per annum above the quoted six month LIBOR for US dollars 
calculated on the remaining principal balances up to 22 October 2013. 

 
This loan was fully syndicated in June 2008 when KBC Bank NV Singapore branch, Natixis Bank and Nordkap 
Bank AG joined Standard Chartered Bank and Mizuho Corporate Bank. 

 
US$15,000,000 was drawn from the loan by EEES during the financial year. 

 
(f) Corporate Bank Loan Terms and Conditions 

 
(i) US$60,000,000 Facility Agreement with Standard Chartered Bank and Mizuho Corporate Bank Limited  
 

On 25 July 2008, the Company entered into a corporate loan facility with Standard Chartered Bank (SCB) and 
Mizuho Corporate Bank Limited (Mizuho) whereby SCB and Mizuho agreed to provide $60 million to debt 
fund part of the capital expenditure for the Sengkang LNG project or related projects (such as Sengkang power 
plant further expansion for the supply of electricity to the LNG project).  The Company has already fully 
drawn down $60 million from the facility as part payment for capital expenditure already committed.  The 
facility is interest payable only until 30 June 2011 when a bullet repayment is due and payable.  Prior to 30 
June 2011, SCB and Mizuho have the option to term out the repayment beyond 30 June 2011 for a further 
three years until 30 June 2014 on an amortisation basis to be agreed. 
 
Interest is payable bi-annually at the rate of 2.50% per annum above the quoted six month LIBOR for US 
dollars for the first year; 2.75% per annum above the quoted six month LIBOR for US dollars for the second 
year; 3.00% per annum above the quoted six month LIBOR for US dollars for the third year.  The facility is 
secured by the assignment of major equipment contracts already placed with Chart Energy & Chemicals Inc 
and Siemens Aktiengesellschaft for the LNG project; a floating charge over all EWC assets; and a charge over 
a debt service reserve account for six month estimated future interest and any letter of credit fees that maybe 
incurred.  It is already agreed that these securities can be released to allow a separate financing to be put in 
place for the LNG project when the project financing arrangements are satisfactorily concluded. 

 
(ii) US$75,000,000 Revolving Loan Facility Agreement with Standard Chartered Bank 

 
On 22 October 2008 a revolving loan facility was signed between the Standard Chartered Bank for the amount 
of US$75 million.  The facility was for the term of 3 years and interest rate is 0.5% over the cost of funds of 
the bank.  Part of the facility was drawn to repay the US$100 million facility with Standard Chartered Bank 
and the outstanding balance as at 30 June 2009 was US$74,704,831.  Funds of US$74,704,831 was held as 
security for the facility as disclosed in note 11. 
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22.  Interest-Bearing Liabilities (continued) 
 

(iii) A$75,000,000 (or within which up to US$50,000,000 sublimit) Revolving Loan Facility Agreement with  
The Hong Kong and Shanghai Banking Corporation Limited 
 
On 10 October 2008 a revolving loan facility was signed between HSBC and the company.  The facility 
consists of both US dollar and AU dollar component for the maximum of A$75 million.  The facility was for 
the term of 3 years and the interest rate is 0.5% over the LIBOR.  A$75 million was required to be held as 
security for the facility.  As at 30 June 2010, US$49,616,093 (A$6,402,000 and US$44,131,500) was drawn 
from the loan. Funds of US$64,438,583 (A$75,217,209) was held as security for the facility as disclosed in 
note 11. 

 
(g) Related Party Loan 

 
The Company has a loan facility with its major shareholder, Energy World International Limited (“EWI”), as was 
accepted by shareholders at a general meeting on 16 December 2005. On 16 December 2009 a repayment of A$6 
million was made to EWI. The balance of the facility US$7,430,481 (A$8,673,375) and interest accrued of 
US$12,994,683 (A$15,168,300) are scheduled to be repaid on 30 September 2012. The interest rate on the facility 
is calculated at 10% p.a. 

 
(h) Undrawn Committed Borrowing Facilities 

 
As at 30 June 2010, the Group has available $14,515,017 (2009: $30,208,149) of undrawn committed borrowing 
facilities available. 
 

 
 2010 2009 
 US$’000 US$’000 

 
23. Provisions 

 
   
Current   
Employee benefits (a)      140         130 
      140 130 

 
Non-current      
Employee benefits (a)   2,478      2,261 
Restoration/rehabilitation (b)      919     1,326 
Production bonus (c)   1,099        801 
   4,496 4,388 
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23.  Provisions (continued) 
 

 2010 
US$’000 

2009        
US$’000 

(a) Employee Benefits 
 

Current   
Australian employees            64 105 
Indonesia National employee*            76   25 
          140 130 
Non-current   
Indonesia National employees* 2,336 2,122 
Indonesia expatriate employees 142 139 
      2,478  2,261 
* Indonesian National employees 
 
PTES & EEES provide benefits for their employees who achieve the retirement age of 56 based on the 
provisions of Labor Law No.13/2003 dated 25 March 2003. The benefits are unfunded. 
 
The following tables summarise the components of net Indonesian national employee service entitlements 
expenses recognized in the statement of comprehensive income as determined by an independent actuary PT 
Padma Radya Aktuaria. 

 
Current service cost   229   206 
Interest cost   243   254 
Amortisation of unvested past service cost       (2)       (3) 
Actuarial (gains)/losses   330   (248) 
Effect of Curtailment   (166)   - 
Net employee service entitlements expenses   634   209 
   
Movements in the provision for Indonesian national employee service entitlements during the years ended 30 
June 2010 and 2009 are as follows: 
 
Balance at beginning of year 2,147      2,159 
Add:  Provision during the year    634         209 
Less: Utilisation during the year     (369)         (221) 
Balance at end of the year 2,412       2,147 

 
The principal assumptions used in determining provision for Indonesian national employee service entitlements 
liabilities as of 30 June 2010 and 30 June 2009 are as follows: 

 
 2010 2009 

Discount rate   9% 11% 
Salary increment rate 10% 10% 
Mortality rate 100%TM12 100%TM12 
Disability rate 5%TM12 5%TM12 
Resignation/turnover rate 1% p.a. 1% p.a. 
Retirement age The earlier of 56 years of age or 30 

September 2022 
TM12 means Table Mortality Indonesia second edition 
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23.  Provisions (continued) 
(a) Employee Benefits 

(b) Restoration/rehabilitation provisions relate to the estimated costs associated with the restoration of sites in 
Eromanga and Gilmore, Australia and Sengkang, Indonesia, that will be incurred at the conclusion of the 
petroleum lease/production sharing contract/economic life of the asset. 

 
 2010 

US$’000 
2009 

US$’000 
Movement in provision for abandonment and restoration:   
Balance at the beginning of the year     1,326      1,393 
Addition          94          26 
Utilised        (500)           - 
Unwind discount for the year          46          41 
Foreign exchange gain          (47)       (134) 
Balance at end of the year         919    1,326 

 
(c) EWC is required to pay a production bonus of $2 million within 30 days after cumulative production from the 

contract area has reached 10 MMBOE and to pay an additional production bonus of $750,000 for each increment 
in production of 5 MMBOE. 

 
 2010 

US$’000 
2009         

US$’000 
Movement in provision for production bonus:   
Balance at the beginning of the year        801        488 
Provision made during the year        298        313 
Payment during the year            -            - 
Balance at end of the year     1,099        801 

 
 
24.  Share Capital and Reserves 
 

 2010 2009 
 US$000 US$000 

Issued capital 376,534              376,534 
   
 2010 2009 
 Number Number 

Number of ordinary shares, issued and fully paid 1,561,166,672 1,561,166,672 
 
Holders of ordinary shares are entitled to receive dividends as declared from time to time and are entitled to one 
vote per share at shareholders meetings.  In the event of winding up of the Company, ordinary shareholders rank 
after all other shareholders and creditors and are fully entitled to any proceeds of liquidation. 
 
Foreign Currency Translation Reserve 
 
The foreign currency translation reserve comprises all foreign exchange differences arising from the translation of 
the financial statements of the operations where their functional currency is different to the presentation currency of 
the reporting entity, as well as from the translation of liabilities that hedge the Company’s net investment in a 
foreign subsidiary. Refer to note 2(y). 
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24.  Share Capital and Reserves (continued) 
 
Cash Flow Hedge Reserve 
 
The hedging reserve comprises the effective portion of the cumulative net change in the fair value of cash flow 
hedging instruments related to hedged transactions that have not yet occurred. 
 
On 27 November 2007, PTES and EEES entered into an Amended and Restated Facility Agreement with Standard 
Chartered Bank and Mizuho Corporate Bank (Note 22 (e)). Under the Loan Facility Agreement the Companies are 
exposed to market risk as a result of changes in market based interest rates and uses derivatives to limit the 
financial impact of such market based interest rate changes. In accordance with the Combined Finance Documents 
the Company is required to enter into and maintain fixed interest swap contracts covering 100% of the amounts 
owing under the Loan Facility Agreement.  
 
As a consequence, PTES and EEES entered into an interest rate swap contract (ISDA Agreement) with Standard 
Chartered Bank Limited, London Branch, at a fixed interest rate of 5.135% p.a.  The termination date of the ISDA 
Agreement is 22 April 2013.  Interest payment dates are 1 April and 1 October each calendar year with the first 
instalment payable 1 April 2008 and the final instalment on 22 October 2013.  These swaps are designated to 
hedge the debt obligations.  The unrealized hedge loss as of 30 June 2010 amounted to US$569,954 (2009 
US$1,031,732). The unrealized hedge loss reflects the present market based interest rate (LIBOR) compared with 
the fixed rate under the swap contract. 

 
 

25. Contingent Liabilities 
 
Details of our Group’s contingent liabilities, where the probability that payment will be required is not considered 
remote, are set out below, as well as details of contingent liabilities which, although considered remote, our 
Directors consider should be disclosed:  
 

(a)   BPMIGAS Participation 
 
The Sengkang PSC provides that BPMIGAS is entitled to acquire (via a BPMIGAS nominated entity) an 
undivided 10% interest in EEES´ rights and obligations under the Sengkang PSC by payment of an amount equal 
to the sum of (i) 10% of the unrecovered operating costs balance as at 24 October 2000, approximately US$40 
million, and (ii) 10% of the bonuses paid to BPMIGAS under the Sengkang PSC, totalling US$6.5 million (the 
“Amount”). On acquiring a 10% participating interest BPMIGAS would also be obliged to pay 10% of the future 
operating costs of the Sengkang PSC. 
 
Under the Sengkang PSC conditions, Pertamina (BPMIGAS’ predecessor) was required to advise EEES by 23 
January 2001 whether it planned to pay either (a) 100% of the Amount to EEES in cash; or (b) 150% of the 
Amount to EEES by way of instalments of 50% of its share of production from its 10% participation in the 
Sengkang PSC. Whilst Pertamina did advise EEES of its intention to acquire a 10% participating interest in the 
Sengkang PSC, it did not advise EEES whether it would pay in cash or out of its share of production. 
 
Any cash payment should have been made by Pertamina (BPMIGAS’ predecessor) by 23 January 2001 and any 
payment out of production should have commenced from the first sale of oil or gas from the Sengkang Contract 
Area after 24 October 2000. No cash payment or payment out of production has been made. 
 
EEES therefore continues to have a 100% interest in the Sengkang PSC. It is not clear whether BPMIGAS’ right 
to acquire the 10% participation right is still exercisable, given among other matters that the deadlines mentioned 
above have not been complied with. Based on the terms of the PSC, our Directors are of the view that no material 
adverse impact on EEES’ business or operations would arise from any valid exercise of the 10% participation right. 
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25.  Contingent Liabilities (continued) 
 

(b)    Recovery of Operating Costs - EEES 
 
The Indonesia State Auditors (BPKP) and BPMIGAS auditors have completed their audit of EEES petroleum 
operations under the Sengkang PSC for the calendar years up to 2008. Costs disallowed by  BPKP and BPMIGAS 
which are not eligible for cost recovery under the Sengkang PSC terms, including the Company’s legal, finance, 
tax advisory and external audit costs, have been excluded from the claim for recovery of costs.  
   
The Operating Costs have been claimed by the Company and recovered out of gas revenues, however BPKP and 
BPMIGAS auditors have so far agreed to part of the claimed amounts, pending further consideration of the basis 
for the claims.  The Company is pursuing these claimed amounts as they are believed to be properly based and in 
accordance with the provisions of the Sengkang PSC and approvals obtained, and expects that they will be 
favorably resolved in due course.  

 
• Interest Cost Recovery 
 
In April 2004, BPMIGAS approved the granting of an Interest Cost Recovery incentive to the Company. 
Through to the end of 2007, the Company has claimed amounts for Interest Cost Recovery totaling 
US$10,431,400 while the auditors have only accepted amounts totaling US$3,942,644 due to differences in 
opinion regarding the period for calculating the Interest Cost Recovery incentive. The Company considers 
that the Interest Cost Recovery incentive calculation commences from January 1995 (the date for approval of 
the Kampung Baru Gas field Plan of Development) and applies to all eligible operating costs incurred since 
that date, while the Indonesian Government Auditors consider that the interest Cost Recovery calculation 
should commence from 1 October 2000, which was the effective date for revision of the Gas Price. 

 
 The amounts claimed and accepted are summarized below. 

 

Calendar Year Amounts Claimed by 
Company 

Amounts Accepted by 
BPKP and BPMIGAS Variance 

 US$ US$ US$ 
2004 10,381,274  3,942,644 6,438,630 
2005        50,126      50,126 - 
2006        72,826      72,826 - 
2007         59,341      59,341 - 
2008         87,783      87,783 - 
Total 10,651,350 4,212,720 6,438,630 

 
At 30 June 2009 the Company has claimed Interest Cost Recovery amounts totaling US$10,651,350 in 
respect of the 2004, 2005, 2006, 2007 and 2008 years and has recovered these costs out of gas revenues. If 
the Interest Cost Recovery amounts are disallowed, the Company’s share of gas revenues will be reduced by 
US$3,863,178 and the Company’s corporate and dividend tax expense will increase by US$1,699,798 and 
the Indonesia State Share of gas revenues will be increased by the same amount and payment would be 
required out of the Contractor’s share of gas revenues. .  
 
Company management have provided the basis and justification for the claims and believe that the claims for 
Interest Cost Recovery will be eventually be allowed, as the claim has been made on the basis of the 
approvals from the Coordinating Minister of Economics and Finance (January 2004) and BPMIGAS (April 
2004), and the claim and cost recovery amounts are in accordance with the provisions of the Sengkang PSC.   
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25.  Contingent Liabilities (continued) 
 

(c)    Intra-Group Loans 
 
The Company has given an undertaking that we will not require loans that we have made to wholly owned and 
controlled entities to be repaid within a 12-month period from 31 August 2010 if doing so would place those 
entities in a position where they could not pay their debts as and when they fall due.  
 

(d)    Deed of Cross Guarantee 
 
The Company and certain wholly owned or controlled entities have entered into a deed of cross guarantee, 
pursuant to which we and such entities agree to pay any deficiency relating to debts in the event of the winding up 
of any of the entities that are party to the deed. Apart from the Company, the parties to the cross guarantee are 
AGL, CEA, CEP, Central Queensland Power Pty Ltd and Energy Equity West Kimberly Pty Ltd. 
 
No provision has been made for any of these matters, as our Directors believe, in each case, either that it is not 
probable that a future sacrifice of economic benefit will be required or that the amount of such a future sacrifice is 
not susceptible of being reliably measured.  

 
 
26.  Future Financial Capital Commitments 

 
Details of the Group’s committed capital expenditure during the financial year ending 30 June 2010 are as 
disclosed: 
 
Completion of the Sengkang Power Plant Expansion Project 
 
During the 2011 and 2012 financial year, the Group anticipate spending US$150 million in connection with the 
Sengkang Expansion, improving and supplementing our development, pipeline and processing infrastructure to 
accommodate the increased gas supply required for the expanded generating capacity of the Sengkang Power Plant.   
The proposed capital spend will be project debt financed. This expected expenditure is not yet committed. 
 
Sengkang LNG Project 
 
In 2007, the Group entered into an equipment supply agreement with Chart for modular LNG trains. During the 
financial year ended 30 June 2011, the Group are contracted to spend US$20 million, include commitments with 
Siemens, representing the balance remaining under the existing purchase agreements, for the principal components 
of the Sengkang LNG Facility, which were ordered in 2007. 
 
During the financial year ended 30 June 2011, the Group are also projected to spend US$42.2 million representing 
the balance of funds required to enable first commercial production of LNG from the Sengkang LNG plant. 
 
PEL96 
 
During the financial year ended 30 June 2011, the Group propose to spend A$496,000 in connection with the PEL 
96 development 
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27.  Deed of Cross Guarantee  
 
Pursuant to ASIC Class Order 98/1418 (as amended) dated 13 August 1998, the wholly owned subsidiaries listed 
below are relieved from the Corporations Act 2001 requirements for preparation, audit, and lodgement of financial 
reports, and Directors’ report. 
 
It is a condition of the Class Order that the Company and each of the subsidiaries enter into a Deed of Cross 
Guarantee. The effect of the Deed is that the Company guarantees to each creditor payment in full of any debt in 
the event of winding up of any of the subsidiaries under certain provisions of the Corporations Act 2001. If a 
winding up occurs under other provisions of the Act 2001, the Company will only be liable in the event that after 
six month any creditor has not paid in full. The subsidiaries have also given similar guarantees in the event that the 
Company is wound up. 
 
The subsidiaries subject to the Deed are: 
 
• Australian Gasfields Limited 
• Central Energy Australia Pty Ltd 
• Central Energy Power Pty Ltd 
• Central Queensland Power Pty Ltd 
• Energy Equity West Kimberly Pty Ltd 
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27.  Deed of Cross Guarantee (continued) 
 

A consolidated statement of comprehensive income and consolidated statement of financial position, comprising 
the Company and subsidiaries which are a party to the Deed, after eliminating all transactions between parties to 
the Deed of Cross Guarantee, at 30 June 2010 is set out below: 
 

Statement of comprehensive income 
2010 

US$'000 
2009 

US$'000 

Profit from ordinary activities            12,683       (17,831) 
Income tax attributable to ordinary activities -                     - 

Profit from ordinary activities after income tax 12,683         (17,831) 

Accumulated losses at the beginning of the financial year (78,034)         (60,203) 

Accumulated losses at the end of the financial year (65,351)         (78,034) 
   

Statement of financial position   
Current assets   
Cash assets 60,219 55,166 
Trade and other receivables 2,374  1,907 
Inventories 128 118 
Total current assets 62,721  57,191 
Non-current assets   
Cash assets 140,756  142,867 
Trade and other receivables 143,499  125,613 
Inventories -   128 
Investments 49,371    72,162 
Exploration and evaluation expenditure 24,114        18,556 
Property, plant and equipment 224,532        193,409 
Total non-current assets 582,272      552,735 

Total assets 644,993          609,926 
    
Current Liabilities   
Payables 45,967            38,628 
Interest bearing liabilities 60,000                      - 
Provisions 64                   47 
Total current liabilities 106,031         38,675 
Non-current liabilities   
Interest bearing liabilities and borrowings 216,296 263,012 
Total non-current liabilities 216,296 263,012 
Total liabilities 322,327 301,687 
Net assets 322,666 308,239 
    
Equity   
Issued capital 376,534 376,534 
Foreign Currency Translation Reserve 11,483 9,739 
Accumulated losses (65,351) (78,034) 
Total equity 322,666 308,239 
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28.  Notes to the Statements of Cash Flows 
 

  2010 2009 
  US$'000 US$'000 
    

(a) Reconciliation of the profit /(loss) from ordinary activities after tax to 
the net cash flows used in operations 

 
Profit / (loss) from ordinary activities after tax 20,369 (8,566) 

    
 Add/(less) non-cash items    

Depreciation of non-current assets  19,950 17,050 
Reversal of impairment - property, plant & equipment  (3,292) - 
Foreign currency (gain)/ loss  (6,774) 23,929 
Financing expenses classified as investing cash flow  9,485 8,152 

 
Changes in assets and liabilities during the financial year  

   

(Increase)/decrease in receivables  (17,090) 5,005 
(Increase)/decrease in prepayments  (347) 424 
(Increase)/decrease in inventories  (1,121) (1,433) 
(Decrease)/increase in payables  4,820 (2,676) 
(Decrease)/increase in provisions  118 516 
Net cash  from operating activities  26,118 42,401 

    
(b) Reconciliation of cash    

For the purpose of the statements of cash flows, cash includes 
cash on hand and at bank and short term deposits at call, net of 
outstanding bank overdrafts. Cash as at the end of the financial 
year as shown in the statements of cash flows is reconciled to 
the related items in the statements of financial position as 
follows: 

   

    
Cash assets  58,696 64,094 
Closing cash balance  58,696 64,094 

    
 
Cash assets include cash at bank and short-term deposits. Cash at banks earn interest at floating rates based on 
daily bank deposit rates. Short-term deposits are made for varying period of between one day and one month, 
depending on the immediate cash requirements of the Group, and earn interest at the respective short-term deposit 
rates. The fair value of cash assets is US$58.7 million (2009: US$64.1 million). 
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 29.  Key Management Personnel Disclosures 
 

    Directors 
 

Executive Directors   Independent Non-Executive Directors   
  
Mr. Stewart William George Elliott, 
Chairman, Managing Director and CEO 
 

Dr. Brian Derek Littlechild  
 
Mr. Leslie James Charles 

Mr. Ian William Jordan, 
Executive Director and Company Secretary 
  

 
Mr. Djan Faridz 

Mr. Brian Jeffrey Allen, 
Executive Director and Finance Director  

Mr. Michael Phillip O’Neill 

  
Senior Management 

 
Our senior management comprises our executive Directors, our Company Secretary in Australia and the 
following persons: 

 
Name  Position Date of joining our Group 
   
Mr. Graham Stewart Elliott 
 

Project Director September 2003 

Mr. Thomas Wong 
 

Senior Project Engineer/Project Co-ordinator September 2004 

 

Key Management Personnel Compensation 
 

For the period covered in this Annual Report, the Company’s major shareholder, Energy World International 
Limited (“EWI”), has provided assistance to the Company in the form of direct executive and management 
assistance when and as required.   
 
Although EWC’s economic position permits the Company to compensate directors for such services for the 
period covered in this Annual Report, no formal obligations have been entered into or contracted between EWC 
and its Executive or Non-Executive Directors.  At the annual general meeting of shareholders held on 24 
October 2008, the shareholders agreed the maximum annual aggregate remuneration that the Directors are 
entitled to be paid for their ordinary services as Directors out of the funds of the Company be fixed at A$200,000 
for Non-Executive Directors and A$800,000 for Executive Directors. 
   
However and not withstanding for the period covered in this Annual Report, no obligations have been entered 
into or contracted between EWC and its Executive or Non-Executive Directors.  During the financial year 1 July 
2010 to 30 June 2011, it is intended that compensation arrangements will be developed for both Executive 
Directors and Independent Non-Executive Directors based upon shareholders aggregate remuneration of 
Directors approved at the Annual General Meeting of shareholders on 24 October 2008. 
 
There were no remuneration payments made during the years ended 30 June 2009 or 30 June 2010.  
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29.  Key Management Personnel Disclosures (continued) 
 
Other Key Management Personnel Transactions with the Company or Its Controlled Entities 
 
Transactions entered into during the year with specified directors of Energy World Corporation Limited and 
controlled entities are within normal employee, customer or supplier relationships on terms and conditions no 
more favourable than dealings in the same circumstances on an arms’s length basis and include: 
 
• Purchase of goods and services 
• Reimbursement of expenses; and 
• Terms and conditions of employment. 
 
No other loans were extended to key management personnel and their related parties during the financial year or 
the comparative year and no loans existed at 30 June 2010 or 30 June 2009. 
 
Related Party Loans 
 
The Company’s major shareholder, Energy World International (EWI), a company of which is a personally related 
entity to Mr S. Elliott, continues to provide financial support to the Consolidated Entity. As at 30 June 2010, EWI 
have advanced the Company interest bearing liabilities of US$12,994,683 (A$15,168,300) (2009: 
US$11,809,132). Interest charged during the financial year from these loans amounted to US$2,237,312 
(A$2,538,917) (2009: US$2,292,323 (A$3,055,949)).  
 
Connected Transactions 
 

(a) Leases of properties  
 
EWC rent a number of properties from connected persons for our offices in Sydney, New South Wales and for the 
site of our proposed LNG Hub terminal in the Philippines, details of which are set out in the following table: 

 
Premises Lessor Lessee Term Rental 
1. Part of Unit 9A, 
Seaforth Crescent, 
Seaforth, Sydney, New 
South Wales,  Australia  

Energy World 
International Ltd 

Energy World 
Corporation Ltd 

Initial term of 2 years 
commencing 1 February 
2004, from time to time, 
further extended for 19 
months from 1 February 2010 
and expiring 31 August 2011  

A$6,000 per month (excluding 
GST); 
Payment made during the 
period of this annual report - 
A$72,000 (US$63,502) 

2. Parcel of land 
comprising a total area of 
215,000 sq.m on Pagbilao 
Grande Island, Province 
of Quezon, Lozon,  the 
Philippines 

Malory Properties 
Inc.* 

Energy World 
Corporation Ltd 

20 years commencing 9 June 
2007 with an option to extend 
for a further term of 10 years 

5 PHP ($0.1) per square metre 
(total 1,075,000 PHP) ($22,349 
per annum, commencing on the 
date of commissioning and 
commercial operation of the 
LNG Hub facility, indexed to 
the Philippines consumer price 
index annually after 3 years of 
the term; no payment was made 
during the period of this annual 
report. 

 
* Malory Properties Inc., a company incorporated in the Philippines on 23 March 1993 with limited liability in 
controlled by Mr. Stewart Elliott, EWC’s Chairman, Managing Director and Chief Executive Officer. 
 
Each of the real property leases described above was entered into on normal commercial terms (or on terms more 
favourable to us) with the applicable lessor. We believe that if any of the lessors ceases to lease any of the 
properties to us, we would be able to find suitable alternative premises from third parties in the same region without 
undue delay or inconvenience 
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29.  Key Management Personnel Disclosures (continued) 
 
(b) Management Services Agreements with EWC and Connected Persons 

 
We have entered into a number of management services agreements with EWI and Slipform Engineering (H.K.) 
Ltd (Slipform (H.K.)), details of which are set out in the following table: 

 

Parties Date of agreement Scope of services Fees 

Payment made 
during the period 
of this annual 
report 

1. EWC and EWI 1 January 2002 EWI agrees to provide us with 
executive management services, 
key staff and other facilities 
including accommodation in 
Hong Kong. 
 

EWC pay a fixed fee of 
A$130,000 per month. 
(US$114,657) 

A$1,560,000 
(US$1,375,884) 

2. EWC and 
Slipform (H.K.) * 

18 July 2007  Slipform (H.K.) agrees to provide 
EWC with engineering assistance, 
design services and management 
support for the development of the 
Sengkang LNG Project 
 

Fixed fee of US$32 
million for the 
development of 4 x 
500,000 tons per annum 
plant.  

Final payment made 
during the financial 
year 2010 – 
US$579,000 

3. EWC and 
Slipform (H.K.) * 

18 July 2007  Slipform (H.K.) agrees to provide 
EWC with engineering assistance, 
design services and management 
support for the development of the 
LNG receiving and hub terminal 
in the Philippines  
 

Fixed fee of US$3 million 
for the development of an 
LNG receiving and hub 
terminal.  

US$600,000. 

4. EWC and 
Slipform (H.K.) * 

18 July 2007  Slipform (H.K.) agrees to provide 
EWC with engineering assistance, 
design services and management 
support for the expansion of the 
Sengkang Gas Plant in the 
existing Sengkang Gas Field 
 
 
 

Fixed fee of US$450,000 
for the expansion of the 
Sengkang Gas Plant in the 
existing Sengkang gas 
field 

The contract amount 
was paid in full 
during the financial 
year 2009 

5. EWC and 
Slipform (H.K.) * 

18 July 2007  Slipform (H.K.) agrees to provide 
EWC with engineering assistance, 
design services and management 
support for the Sengkang 
Expansion 
 

Fixed fee of US$1.35 
million for the expansion 
of the Sengkang power 
plant  

The contract amount 
was paid in full 
during the financial 
year 2009 

 
* Slipform H.K., a company incorporated in the British Virgin Islands with limited liability and is wholly     
beneficially owned by Mr. Stewart Elliott, EWC’s Chairman, Managing Director and Chief Executive Officer. 
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29.  Key Management Personnel Disclosures (continued) 
 

Options and Rights over Equity Instruments Granted As Compensation 
 
No Options were held by key management personnel. 
 
The movement during the reporting period in the number of ordinary shares of Energy World Corporation Limited 
held directly, indirectly or beneficially, by each specified director, including their personally related entities is as 
follows: 

Shares Held at 
1 July 2009 Purchase Sale Held at 

30 June 2010 
Specified Directors/     
Non-Executive     
B.D.Littlechild - - - - - 
L.J. Charles - - - - - 
D. Faridz - - - - - 
M.P. O’Neill 150,000 100,000 - 250,000 
     
Executive     
S.W.G. Elliott 724,421,234 - - 724,421,234 
I.W. Jordan 319,700 - - 319,700 
B.J. Allen - - - - 
     
Other Key Management 
Personnel     
G.S. Elliott - - - - 
T. Wong - - - - - 

Total 724,890,934 100,000 - 724,990,934 

 
No shares were granted to key management personnel during the reporting period as compensation. 

 
 
30.  Non-Director Related Parties 
  

The amounts owed and outstanding by the Group to related parties at 30 June are as follows: 
 

 
2010         

US$'000 

2009         

US$'000 

Slipform H.K. Ltd                     - 579 

Energy World International Ltd           20,767 33,033 

Total           20,767           33,612 
 
 

31.  Economic Dependency 
 
A large portion of the revenue of the consolidated entity and the revenue received by subsidiaries is from long 
term power purchase contracts with state government owned electricity corporations in Australia and Indonesia. 
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32.  Financial Instruments  
 

(a) Financial Risk Management 
 

The consolidated entity’s principal financial instruments comprise cash, cash held in reserved accounts, 
receivables, payables and secured bank loans.  The main purpose of these financial instruments is to raise finance 
for its operations.  The consolidated entity has financial instruments such as trade debtors and trade creditors, 
which arise directly from operations. 
 
The consolidated entity manages its exposure to key financial risks, including interest rate, credit and liquidity 
risks in accordance with the consolidated entity’s Treasury Management policy.  The objective of the policy is to 
support the delivery of the consolidated entity’s financial targets whilst protecting future financial security. 

 
(b) Capital Risk Management 

 
The consolidated entity manages its capital to ensure it will be able to continue as a going concern, while 
maximising the return to stakeholders through the optimisation of the debt and equity balance.  The Board reviews 
and agrees policies for managing the capital structure when considering each major project investment. 
 
The consolidated entity monitors capital on the basis of the gearing ratio.  This ratio is calculated as total debt 
divided by total shareholders’ equity.  Total debt is calculated as total interest-bearing financial liabilities.  Total 
shareholders’ equity is calculated as equity as shown in the statement of financial position. 

 
 (c) Foreign Currency Risk 

 
Management regularly monitors the position of the consolidated entity and has not entered into any foreign 
exchange contracts as at 30 June 2010. The Company manages the risk by matching receipts and payments in the 
same currency. 
 
Most of the revenue is denominated in US dollars and most of the loans extended to the consolidated entities are 
denominated in US dollars.  From 1 July 2007, the functional currency of all entities is the US dollar with the 
exception of certain Australian subsidiaries which are Australian dollar. 

 
(d) Credit Risk 

 
The consolidated entity's maximum exposure to credit risk to each class of recognised financial asset is the 
carrying amount, net of any provisions for doubtful debts, of those assets as indicated in the statement of financial 
position. 
 
In relation to unrecognised financial assets, credit risk arises from the potential failure of counter parties to meet 
their obligations under the contract or arrangement.  Credit risk on off-balance sheet derivative contracts is 
minimised, as counterparties are recognised financial intermediaries with acceptable credit ratings determined by a 
recognised rating agency. 
 
The majority of production from the operations of the consolidated entity is sold to government entities in 
Australia and Indonesia under long term Take or Pay contracts with the respective government utility.   
 
Exposure to power utilities in Indonesia through the consolidated entity in the Sengkang Gas and Power Project is 
included in the consolidated entity’s investment in associated entities.   
 
The consolidated entity is dependent on three major suppliers.  The provision of feedstock gas is sourced from 
Power and Water Authority in Northern Territory, Australia, and PT. Pertamina (Persero) in Indonesia. The 
operation and maintenance contract for the PTES Sengkang power plant is with PT Alstom Power Energy 
Systems, Indonesia.  
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32. Financial Instruments (continued) 
 

(e)   Inflation and Deflation 
  
The consolidated entity sells products (principally gas and power) pursuant to long-term agreements containing 
terms that permit only small variations in prices.  If the economies in which we operate, particularly Indonesia, 
were to suffer significant inflation or deflation, the pricing mechanisms in these contracts would not fully reflect 
these changed circumstances.  During the period of this annual report, the Group was not materially affected by 
inflation or deflation. 
 

(f)   Interest Rate Risk 
 
The consolidated entity’s exposure to market risk for changes in interest rates relates primarily to its cash, cash held 
in reserved accounts and debt obligations.  The management review its position on a daily basis in respect of any 
change in interest rate. 
 
PTES and EEES entered into interest rate swap contracts to hedge their debt obligations.  The swap contracts with 
SCB London and the ISDA Agreement were signed on August 30, 2007 at fixed interest rate of 5.135% p.a. 

 
The following table sets out the carrying amount of the financial instruments exposed to United States dollar and 
Australian dollar variable interest rate risk.   
 
Table A 

 2010 
Effective 

interest rate 

2009 
Effective 

interest rate 

2010 
US$’000 

2009 
US$’000 

Financial assets     
Cash and cash equivalents 1.72% 3.04% 58,696 64,094 
Cash held in reserve accounts 1.72% 3.04% 177,768 179,962 
   236,464 244,056 
     
Financial liabilities     
Interest-bearing loans and borrowings  3.16% 4.18% 240,263 232,117 
   240,263 232,117 
Net exposure   (3,799) 11,939 
 
The loan for PTES and EEES with Standard Chartered Bank and Mizuho Bank was not subjected to interest rate 
risk.  The companies entered into interest rate swap contracts to hedge their debt obligations. The Swap contracts 
with SCB London and the ISDA Agreement were signed on 30 August 2007 at fixed interest rate of 5.135% p.a. 
The swap contracts, with a fair value of $2.5m (liability) (2009: $3.2m liability) are exposed to fair value 
movements if interest rates change. 
 
At 30 June 2010, if interest rates had moved, as illustrated in the table below, with all other variables held constant, 
the consolidated entity’s post-tax profit and equity would have been affected as follows. We have elected to use 
these interest rate variations as the basis of the sensitivity analysis due to the fact that we currently operate in a US 
dollar low interest rate environment. 

 
The following table demonstrates the sensitivity to a reasonably possible change in interest rates, with all other 
variables held constant, of the Group’s profit after tax through the impact on floating rate borrowings and cash and 
cash equivalents. 
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32.  Financial Instruments (continued) 
 
(f) Interest Rate Risk (continued) 

 
Table B 

 Post Tax Profit  
Higher/(Lower) 

Equity 
Higher/(Lower) 

 2010 2009 2010 2009 
 $000 $000 $000 $000 

Consolidated     

+1% (100 basis points) 520 743     23    13 
-0.5% (50 basis points) (260) (371)     (11)     (6) 

 
The movements in profit in 2009 and 2010 are due to higher / lower interest costs from variable rate debt and cash 
balances.    

 
(g)   Liquidity Risk 

 
The aim of liquidity risk management is to ensure that the consolidated entity has sufficient funds available to meet 
its obligations both on a day to day basis and in the longer term.  That is, its aim is to ensure that new funding and 
refinancing can be obtained when required and without undue concentration at times when financial markets might 
be strained.  Provided that theses aims are met, the policy also aims to minimise net interest expense. 
 
The tables below detail the maturity profile of the financial assets and liabilities. Trade payables and other financial 
liabilities mainly originate from the financing of assets used in ongoing operations such as property, plant and 
equipment and investments in working capital e.g. trade receivables. These assets are considered in the 
consolidated entity’s overall liquidity risk. Management closely monitors the timing of expected settlement of 
financial assets and liabilities. 

30 June 2010 Contractual Maturity 
 < 6 

months 
$000 

6-12 
months 
$000 

               
1-2 years 

$000 

 
2-5  years 

$000 

 
> 5 years 

$000 

 
Total 
$000 

Financial assets       
Cash and cash equivalents 58,696 - - - - 58,696 
Cash held in reserve accounts 17,127  19,885  140,756  - - 177,768 
Trade and other receivables  18,514   8,416  - - -      26,930  
 94,337 28,301 140,756 - - 263,394 
       
Financial liabilities       
Trade and other payables 26,140 - - - -      26,140  
Interest-bearing loans and 
borrowings  

22,171   61,940  132,403  27,766  13,074      257,354 

Derivative liabilities – net settled 1,315  1,140  - - -          2,455  
 49,626 63,080 132,403 27,766  13,074       285,949  
Net maturity 44,711  (34,779) 8,353  (27,766) (13,074)     (22,555) 

* 
 

Interest bearing loans of the consolidated group currently bear a fixed rate of 10% p.a. for related party and 
variable rate range from 1.02% to 5.59% p.a. in 2010. 
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32. Financial Instruments (continued) 
 
(g)   Liquidity Risk (continued) 
 

30 June 2009 Contractual Maturity 
 < 6 

months 
$000 

6-12 
months 
$000 

               
1-2 years 

$000 

 
2-5  years 

$000 

 
> 5 years 

$000 

 
Total 
$000 

Financial assets       
Cash and cash equivalents 64,094 - - - - 64,094 
Cash held in reserve accounts 27,820 9,275 - 142,867 - 179,962 
Trade and other receivables  9,480 - - - - 9,480 
 101,394 9,275 - 142,867 - 253,536 
       
Financial liabilities       
Trade and other payables 21,000 - - - - 21,000 
Interest-bearing loans and 
borrowings  

7,775 10,275 13,333 248,101 23,419 302,903 

Derivative liabilities – net settled 1,113 2,564 - - - 3,677 
 29,888 12,839 13,333 248,101 23,419 327,580 
Net maturity 71,506 (3,564) (13,333) (105,234) (23,419)    (74,044) 

* 
 

Interest bearing loans of the consolidated group currently bear a fixed rate of 10% p.a. for related party and 
variable rate range from 1.78% to 4.32% p.a. in 2009. 

 
(h)  Commodity Price Risk 

 
Due to the pricing mechanism in our long-term Gas Supply Agreement, under which we sell gas to Pertamina in 
Indonesia, our exposure to fluctuations in the price of gas is not material to our gas operations. Due to our long-
term gas supply arrangements with NT PWC in Australia and Pertamina in Indonesia, under which we receive gas 
for our power plants, our exposure to fluctuations in the price of gas is also not material to our power operations. 
Furthermore, because we are integrated to the extent that our sales and supply arrangements are matched with each 
other in terms of duration and price stability, we do not run a material risk in our power operations that we will be 
locked into what has become a low price for the sale of power while our cost of gas increases or that we will be 
locked into what has become a high price for the purchase of gas while the price we are paid for power declines.  
 

(i) Fair Value 
 

The Group uses various methods in estimating the fair value of a financial instrument. The methods comprise: 
 
Level 1 – the fair value is calculated using quoted prices in active markets. 
Level 2 – the fair value is estimated using inputs other than quoted prices included in Level 1 that are observable 
for the asset or liability, either directly (as prices) or indirectly (derived from prices). 
Level 3 – the fair value is estimated using inputs for the asset or liability that are not based on observable market 
data. 

 
For the year ended 30 June 2010, the Group held no financial instruments with the characteristics of level 1 and 
level 3 financial instruments described above. 

 
The Group holds derivative financial instruments (interest rate swaps) to hedge its risks associated with interest rate 
fluctuations with the characteristics of level 2. For these financial instruments not quoted in active markets, the 
Group uses valuation techniques such as present value, comparison to similar instruments for which market 
observable prices exist and other relevant models used by market participants. These valuation techniques use both 
observable and unobservable market inputs. Refer to note 32 (g) for the fair value measurements of the derivative 
financial instruments. 
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33.  Subsequent Events 
 
On 8 August 2010 Energy World Corporation announced that its American Depository Receipts have obtained 
quotation on the OTCQX International exchange in the United States. No other subsequent events with potential 
impact in 30 June 2010 financial statements occurred post the balance sheet date. 
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In accordance with a resolution of the directors of Energy World Corporation Limited, I state that: 
 
In the opinion of the directors: 
 
(a) the financial statements and notes of the consolidated entity are in accordance with the Corporations Act 2001, 
including: 
 

(i) giving a true and fair view of the consolidated entity’s financial position as at 30 June 2010 and of its 
performance for the year ended on that date; and 

 
(ii) complying with Australian Accounting Standards (including the Australian Accounting Interpretations) and 
the Corporations Regulations 2001;  

 
(b) the financial statements and notes also comply with International Financial Reporting Standards as disclosed in note 
2 (c); and  
 
(c) there are reasonable grounds to believe that the consolidated entity will be able to pay its debts as and when they 
become due and payable.  
 
(d) this declaration has been made after receiving the declarations required to be made to the Directors in accordance 
with section 295A of the Corporations Act 2001 for the financial year ended 30 June 2010. 
 
 
 
On behalf of the Board 

 

 
Stewart William George Elliott 
Chairman/ Managing Director 
 
Dated at Sydney, 10 September 2010 
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Additional information required by the Australian Stock Exchange Limited and not shown elsewhere in this report is as 
follows. 
 
Shareholdings (as at 31 July 2010) 
 
The number of shares held by substantial shareholders and their associates are set out below: 
          
Shareholder   Ordinary 

Energy World International Ltd   719,572,393 
 
Voting Rights 
 
All ordinary shares carry one vote per share without restriction. 
 
Distribution of Equity Security Holders 
 
  Distribution of shareholdings Number of 

Shareholders 
% 

    
 1  - 1,000 632 0.02 
 1,001  - 5,000 2,002 0.39 
 5,001  - 10,000 1,248 0.65 
 10,001 - 100,000 2,084 4.47 
 100,001     &    Over 446 94,47 
  6,412 100.00 

 

On-Market Buy-Back 
 
There is no current on-market buy-back. 
 
Twenty Largest Shareholders from the Register of Members as at 9 August 2010 were:  
 

No. Shareholder Shares % 
1 Energy World International Ltd 419,572,393 26.88 
2 HSBC Custody Nominees (Australia) Ltd 350,335,550 22,44 
3 HSBC Custody Nominees (Australia) Ltd – A/C 2 115,111,002 7.37 
4 National Nominees Limited 79,216,762 5.07 
5 Brispot Nominees Pty Ltd <House Head Nominee No 1 A/C> 61,526,058 3.94 
6 CS Fourth Nominees Pty Ltd <Unpaid A/C> 58,876,749 3.77 
7 Citicorp Nominees Pty Limited 55,570,835 3.57 
8 J P Morgan Nominees Australia Limited 37,154,579 2.38 
9 DDD Investments Limited 31.465,000 2.02 

10 ANZ Nominees Limited <Cash Income A/C> 17,788,064 1.14 
11 Custodial Services Limited <Beneficiaries Holding A/C> 14,439,163 0.92 
12 Zero Nominees Pty Ltd 9,626,560 0.62 
13 Sandhurst Trustees Ltd <JMFG Consol A/C> 9,227,342 0.59 
14 Ms Dorothea Holtmann & Dr Christian Alexander 9,225,000 0.59 
15 Dr Michael Ian Nissen 7,500,000 0.48 
16 Merrill Lynch (Australia) Nominees Pty Ltd 5,944,615 0.38 
17 Sandhurst Trustees Ltd <JM MPS A/C> 5,116,307 0.33 
18 Credit Suisse Securities (Europe) Ltd <Collateral A/C> 5,050,000 0.32 
19 Power Treasure Ltd 4,948,650 0.32 
20 Queensland Investment Corporation 4,219,032 0.27 

  1,302,013,663 83.40 
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Substantial Shareholders 
 Number of Shares    % 

Energy World International Ltd 719,572,393 46.09 
 
Issued Capital 
 
(a) At 30 June 2010, the Company had 1,561,166,672 ordinary fully paid shares listed on the Australian Stock 

Exchange Limited. 
 

(b) At 31 July 2010, 1,099 shareholders held less than a marketable parcel. 
 




